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During 2007 the Group moved a long way towards 
achieving its objectives. Hansteen achieved substantial 
profits and NAV growth and has declared a prudent 
dividend increase. 
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Net Asset Value of 138 pence per share  
(2006 114 pence) an increase of 21%*

Pre-tax profits £20.4 million  
(2006 £22.1 million for a 14 month period)

Dividend of 3.2 pence per share  
(2006 3 pence per share) an uplift of 7%

Property assets of £411.9 million  
(2006 £145.6 million) an increase of 183%

Net debt of £150 million, 36% net debt to value 

Equity increased through placing of  
£68.5 million net

Normalised returns £9.8 million  
(2006 £6.3 million)**

* Diluted EPRA basis (see note 13)
** Pre tax profit excluding foreign currency contractual effects and gains on investment 

properties

Highlights 
2007
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Chairman’s statement

James Hambro

£20.4m 
PRE-TAX PROFIT

2007 has been an active and successful 
year for Hansteen with net asset value 
per share (diluted EPRA NAV basis) of 
the Group increasing by 21% to 138 
pence from 114 pence in the previous 
year. The Board is recommending a 7% 
increase in dividend to 3.2 pence per 
share. This achievement is primarily as 
a result of Hansteen’s focus on the 
continental European logistics and 
warehouse investment market which, 
currently, is proving robust when 
compared to other countries and 
investment sectors. 

Profits for the year were £20.4 million 
compared to £22.1 million for the 
previous 14 month period. Under IFRS 
accounting, the 2007 profits include a 
deduction of £11 million for forward 
currency hedging; this is matched by an 
equal currency gain shown in the balance 
sheet. Underlying profitability growth is 
more accurately reflected by normalised 
returns which were £9.8 million 
compared to £6.3 million in 2006. 

The dividend of 3.2 pence per share 
will be paid on 16 May 2008 to 
shareholders on the register at close of 
business on  18 April 2008. This 
dividend will be charged to the 2008 
financial statements. 

2007 was a year in which Hansteen 
showed substantial growth in terms of 

its capital, property portfolio and 
operational capability.

On 23 March 2007 the Group raised 
approximately £68.5 million of cash 
net of expenses through a placing of an 
additional 53,435,115 shares at a price  
of 131 pence per share. Since flotation, 
the capital raised by the Group has 
amounted to £192.1 million. This 
compares to a net asset value on an 
IFRS basis at 31 December 2007 of 
£231 million. 

The Group’s property portfolio has grown 
substantially in 2007. An additional 66 
properties have been acquired in 37 
separate transactions investing over  
€300 million. At 31 December 2007  
the portfolio comprised 875, 511 sq m  
of property with a value of €561 million 
producing an annual rent roll of  
€40.6 million representing an initial  
yield, including the land and residential 
investments, of 7.25%. This compares  
with average borrowing cost of 5.6%.

During the year the area of significant 
growth was in Germany where the 
Group invested €148 million. As a 
result of increased experience, greater 
knowledge and access to local markets, 
Hansteen has been able to select good 
quality buildings at reasonable prices. 
We continue to invest heavily in the 
Netherlands where our activities 
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“ 2007 was a year in which Hansteen showed substantial growth in 
terms of its capital, property portfolio and operational capability.”

Progress in 2007

 22 transactions completed  
in Germany

 13 transactions completed  
in the Netherlands

1 transaction completed  
 in France

1 transaction completed  
 in Belgium

Expansion of business  
 team with strong broker  
 and management links   
 throughout Europe

Solid deal pipeline

-

-

-

-

-

-

included investing in approximately  
€70 million of prime logistic property 
alongside the more traditional 
secondary buildings. A new area of 
investment for Hansteen is Belgium 
where we successfully concluded the 
acquisition of 14 properties for 
approximately €54.5 million. 

As at 31 December 2007 Hansteen had 
net debt of £150 million, a net debt to 
value ratio of 36%. Annualised interest 
on those borrowings is currently 
approximately £8.4 million compared 
to the current annualised rent roll of 
£29.8 million The Group has further 
committed but undrawn facilities of 
£60 million. These facilities are 
committed until July 2011. If fully 
drawn, this debt would only represent  
a net debt to value ratio of 45%.
 
The team at Hansteen has expanded to 
manage the growth in the business and 
to optimise returns on the Group’s 
properties. We have increased from 
eight employees at the start of the year 
to seventeen today and this has been 
matched with strengthened 
relationships with our managing agents, 
accountants, advisors and brokers in 
each country. 
In the second half of 2007 and during 
2008 the financial environment has been 
dominated by the credit and banking 
problems. In the UK in particular, and 

in some sectors in Europe, there have 
also been declining property values. In 
the opinion of the board, 2008 and 2009 
may well be difficult years for property 
companies, but may also create some 
interesting investment opportunities, 
probably in the UK. 

Hansteen’s joint chief executives were 
previously founders and directors of 
Ashtenne Holdings Plc, a company 
which specialised in UK industrial 
property investments. They built 
Ashtenne during the early nineties 
property downturn and engineered the 
sale of the business in 2005 when, in 
the opinion of the Ashtenne board, the 
fundamental drivers for investing in 
industrial property had left little scope 
for continued growth at that time. This 
experience is likely to be of great value 
to Hansteen over the next two years.

The Group has started 2008 with a 
widely spread, high yielding portfolio 
and low gearing levels. Hansteen’s 
strategy is to continue to develop its 
portfolio of logistical and warehouse 
properties and, during the year, we 
expect to see more interesting and 
attractively priced buying opportunities. 

James Hambro
Chairman 
7 April 2008
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Joint Chief Executives’ review

Ian Watson - Morgan Jones

138pence 
DILUTED EPRA NAV  

PER SHARE

We started last year’s review by 
restating Hansteen’s strategy to provide 
investors with consistent high and, 
where possible, realised returns through 
the creation of a high yielding property 
portfolio in continental Europe. We 
also confirmed that having created a 
robust cash positive core of properties 
we would then seek out some more 
management intensive, opportunistic 
transactions with the capacity for 
greater capital growth than the core 
properties. 

During 2007 the Group moved a long 
way towards achieving these objectives. 
Hansteen achieved substantial profits 
and NAV growth and has declared  
a prudent dividend increase. 

We grew the portfolio from a total of 
366,000 sq m with an annual rent roll 
of €15.8 million and a value of  
€216 million to 876,000 sq m with  
an annual rent roll of €40.6 million  
and a value of €561 million. A number 
of our purchases present value adding 
opportunities such that in addition to 
an initial yield of 7.25% our portfolio 
offers 110.5 acres of development land 
and approximately 82,000 sq m of 
vacant, non income producing but 
lettable space. If that vacant space was 
let at our average rent per sq m of  
€46 per sq m per annum we would  
add €3.7 million to our annual rent roll. 

In our view the key to building value 
was to acquire very selectively at the 
local level. Last year we completed 37 
purchases spread throughout our four 
target countries: Germany, the 
Netherlands, Belgium and France. This 
required focused hard work and 
dedication from the entire Hansteen 
team together with the advice and 
support of our Pan-European network 
of partners and advisors all of whom are 

justifiably proud of this achievement. 
However despite these excellent results 
shareholders will no-doubt be concerned 
by the back drop against which the Group 
in common with its peers is now 
operating. We refer to the ‘credit crunch’, 
the falling commercial property values 
evident in the UK and the possibility of 
negative spill over into the general 
economy. In our view all of these are very 
real concerns. However having grown 
Ashtenne, our previous company, 
through the severe property downturn of 
the early 1990s we believe we have a real 
appreciation of both the risks and the 
opportunities of such an era. 

Our experience during that downturn was 
that with vigorous hands-on management 
secondary industrial property was a robust 
and resilient investment medium. Then, as 
now, an industrial building was the most 
flexible, adaptable and low cost form of 
commercial accommodation. The problem 
in the UK is that industrial property values 
reached unsustainably high levels driven by 
cheap and plentiful capital rather than 
investment fundamentals. 

The fundamentals which gave Ashtenne 
such defensive security in the UK 
industrial property market in the early 
1990s apply equally today to our portfolio 
in Europe. At 7.25% the average initial 
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411.9m 
PROPERTY PORTFOLIO

yield of our properties is significantly 
higher than our average cost of borrowing 
which is around 5.6%. The income surplus 
this creates enables the Group to pay a 
dividend and still grow the business even if 
asset value growth slows. In our view in 
today’s market conditions a key and 
reassuring measure of Hansteen’s 
performance is normalised annual returns 
which excludes the currency contract 
valuation effect, which hedges our 
currency exposure, and property 
investment gains. This figure improved 
from £6.3 million in 2006 to £9.8 million 
in 2007 an increase of over 50%. 

At our current low level of gearing our 
interest bill is 3.5 times covered by our 
rent. Even at a 60% loan to value, which 
we would still regard as comfortable, at 
today’s rates our annual interest bill 
would be over 2 times covered by our 
rent roll. That rent roll comes from 303 
different tenants in 103 different blocks 
of property spread throughout four 
countries. In each of our countries our 
average capital value per sq m is 
materially less than replacement value 
and our average rent per sq m is 
significantly less than what one would 
need to charge for a new build. 
Furthermore, as is normal in continental 
Europe, the vast majority of our rents are 
index linked creating an element of 
rental growth reflecting inflation. 

The Portfolio
At 31 December 2007 the portfolio including investment trading properties was 
valued at £411.9 million analysed as follows:

Euros

   Annualised
 No. of properties Sq m Rent €m Valuation €m

Netherlands 34 360,551 15.5 215
Germany 46 347,728 17.2 228.2
France 4 79,042 2.2 27.7
Belgium 14 52,708 4 54.5
Other Assets 5 35,482 1.7 35.6

Total 103 875,511 40.6 561

Sterling

   Annualised
 No. of properties Sq m Rent £m Valuation £m

Netherlands 34 360,551 11.4 157.9
Germany 46 347,728 12.6 167.5
France 4 79,042 1.6 20.4
Belgium 14 52,708 2.9 40
Other Assets 5 35,482 1.2 26.1

Total 103 875,511 29.7 411.9
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Germany

 

Overall the year end valuation showed a 
yield of 7.25% on the total portfolio and 
7.4% excluding the land and residential 
investments. Over the last year we have 
seen a valuation uplift of £19.5 million 
or 5% on our investment properties. 

Since the year end we have completed 
five further acquisitions all in Germany 
for approximately €19 million with a 
cumulative current rent roll of  
€1.87 million p.a. and sold our 
residential portfolio in Wiesbaden  
for approximately €22 million. The 
acquisitions comprised the following:

1.  A small retail parade in Rosswein, 
anchored by EDEKA and Kik and 
generating €104,000 p.a. rent. 

2.  A business park in Paderborn near 
Dortmund constructed in 1993 by a 
German company Weidmüller as 
their headquarters and subsequently 
vacated and let on flexible terms to 
Telefonica and Massong. The 
current income is €417,000 p.a. 

3.  A group of office and industrial 
buildings on a 4.8 acre segment of 
central Hanau comprising 
48,425 sq m of which 12,083sq m is 
let producing €604,000 p.a. and the 
rest vacant. Many of the vacant 

buildings require substantial 
refurbishment. The property was 
bought at auction from IKB Bank. 

4.  The second half of the Freising 
Portfolio which consists of two 
buildings substantially let to the 
Montessori School producing 
€393,000 p.a. 

5.  Finally an industrial building in 
Wurmlingen let to a variety of 
tenants on predominantly short 
leases currently yielding €351,000 
p.a. in rent. This property was also 
bought at auction from IKB Bank. 

The sale of our residential portfolio in 
Wiesbaden was to Corestate Capital AG 
for approximately €22 million, a small 
profit over the year end valuation. 
Whilst in our view the portfolio had 
considerable further opportunities for 
growth we came to the conclusion that 
as a very management intensive 
portfolio with significant ongoing 
refurbishment requirements it is best 
suited to residential specialists and we 
believe we can more efficiently deploy 
the proceeds in opportunistic 
commercial acquisitions. 

The Group was extremely active in 
2007 and we set out below a 

geographical breakdown of that 
activity. 

Germany
We started 2007 with eight commercial 
properties with a total value of  
€57.2 million and a rent roll of  
€4.49 million p.a. We ended the year 
with 46 different blocks of commercial 
property with a total value of €228.2 
million and a rent roll of €17.2 million 
p.a. We completed 22 transactions 
spread throughout Germany but with 
groupings in the Ruhrgebiet area, the 
larger Frankfurt area and the Baden-
Württemberg area. 

Details of all the purchases have been 
press released and are available on the 
Hansteen website. We set out here some 
updates in relation to those purchases:

1.  At the beginning of the year we 
purchased two warehouse properties 
based in Rodgau and Mühlheim for 
a total cost of €7.5 million producing 
an annual rent of €0.66 million p.a. 
The Mühlheim building was let to 
Alibert a packaging company until 
2010 paying €260,000 per annum. 
Since the purchase Alibert has 
become part of the Linpack Group 
and as a result of negotiations with 
Linpack the company has decided to 

Müllheim
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GERMANY

22 
PROPERTY ACQUISITIONS

make Mühlheim its European 
headquarters. As a result they have 
taken a new lease until 2025 with a 
tenants break at the end of 2015 at 
an increased rent of €277,000 p.a. 
Linpack are investing a substantial 
amount in the building and we have 
recognised this commitment by 
granting them a six month rent free 
period. 

2.  Also in the first half we bought for 
approximately €16 million a 
portfolio of 13 properties at 
Neckarsulm several of which were 
vacant with a total rent roll at the 
time of €1.26 million p.a. During 

the year we have successfully let 
three of the units increasing the rent 
from the portfolio to just over  
€1.4 million p.a. 

3.  Around the middle of last year we 
purchased a portfolio known as the 
‘Engler Portfolio’ comprising four 
blocks of properties providing nearly 
40,000 sq m of space within the 
Ruhr region. The predominantly 
industrial portfolio was purchased 
for €14.1 million and generated a 
total rent of €1.32 million p.a. Since 
the acquisition we have renewed the 
leases on the two large industrial 
buildings in Herne with Rexam for 

a further two years and have grown 
the total rent to €1.43 million per 
annum. 

4.  In the second half of the year we 
bought a two-storey warehouse 
building in Babenhausen near 
Darmstadt at auction from a bank in 
possession. The building was 50% 
occupied and producing an income 
of €327,960 p.a. Since purchase we 
have managed to let approximately 
50% of the remaining vacant space 
albeit on short leases and the current 
income is €480,576.

5.  Lastly we would highlight two 
purchases made in the second half of 
last year which present a significant 
opportunity to add value although 
we have not owned them long 
enough to make progress to date. 

The first is the office and residential 
complex in Halle purchased in 
November last year. The complex was 
developed in the mid 1990s at a cost of 
approximately €28 million. We 
purchased it from a controlling bank for 
€6.2 million. The rent at purchase is 
€437,392 p.a. with approximately 40% 
of the office space vacant. At current 
market levels the property would 
generate annual income in excess of 

Leonberg
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The Netherlands

€650,000 if fully occupied and even 
then would be let off very low rents. 

Secondly at the end of the year we 
purchased a 7,000 sq m property in 
Leonberg adjacent to Stuttgart also 
from a bank in possession. The building 
was recently constructed by an owner-
occupier to a very high specification in 
an excellent position with direct 
motorway connections to the A81 and 
the A8. The building is completely 
vacant but in our view should be 
lettable within the next 18 months 
because of its excellent quality and 
location. 

We continue to look at opportunities in 
Germany but are being more selective 
in terms of the opportunities we are 
pursuing. 

Netherlands
Investing in the Netherlands is a core 
part of Hansteen’s strategy. In early 
2007 we were witnessing downward 
yield shift but by midyear this has 
levelled and has been stable since then. 
We continue to have confidence in the 
Dutch market on the fundamental basis 
that yields remain well above the cost of 
money and the occupational market has 
been steadily improving. 

During 2007 we saw the best value for 
new acquisitions in single let properties, 
sale and leasebacks and in prime 
logistics. Within our core secondary 
market best value was achieved in 
buying units individually rather than 
acquiring portfolios which tended to be 
more widely marketed and subject to 
greater competition. In our case each 
acquisition made was of single units and 
were at sensible rental levels and yields 
between 7.5% and 9%. 

In the first half of 2007 we acquired 
properties at Doetinchem, Emmeloord, 
Hardenberg and Milsbeek for a total of 
€16.1 million. In the second half 
additional acquisitions were made in 
Drachten, Kerkrade, Waalwijk and 
Winterswijk, totalling €15.7 million.

Waalwijk

The weighted average lease length of 
these properties was 7.2 years which 
included a two year rental guarantee at 
Drachten which was purchased vacant 
from the prior owner-occupier. This 
building has since been let on a five 
year lease to a new tenant. 

As reported in last year’s review during 
2007 we established a business with 
joint venture partners Ormix to build a 
portfolio of prime logistic properties in 
the Netherlands. During 2007 five 
prime logistic buildings were acquired 
with Ormix along with an 
opportunistic secondary industrial 
property purchase. 

The first prime purchase was made at 
Houten of a newly developed logistics 
facility let to Vialis B.V. and PGZ Int. 
B.V. on leases of five and ten years. 
Three further acquisitions added to the 
portfolio with the largest being at 
Tilburg which has two properties which 
are let to UPS and Haans Tilburg B.V. 
and has a value of €27.5 million. Other 
acquisitions include a building let to 
Lowland Fashion in ‘s-Heerenberg and 
BAS in Almere. The average lease 
lengths of these properties until the first 
break or expiry is 6.2 years and all 
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THE NETHERLANDS

buildings are newly built and well 
located for the logistic market. The 
average yield on this portfolio is 6.8%. 

In addition we concluded a joint 
purchase of a property in Bunschoten 
which was identified by the Ormix 
team and was acquired at opportunistic 
pricing with the tenant having only a 
very short period left on its lease. The 
tenant has now renewed for a longer 
period and as a result has added value to 
the property. 

The portfolio in the Netherlands has a 
10% vacancy rate and we expect net 
occupancy to improve in 2008. The 
market remains robust for storage and 
distribution units and we will 
increasingly be looking for more active 
management type properties where we 
can add value through marketing, 
letting and refurbishment work. 

Almere
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BELGIUM

Belgium

Belgium
2007 saw our first property investments 
in Belgium with the acquisition of the 
‘Diamond Portfolio’. The purchase was 
made through the acquisition of nine 
companies in Belgium which held 
investments in 14 different properties 
with a value of approximately  
€54.5 million. The yield on the 
portfolio is approximately 7.4%, 
although the running cash yield is 
greater as the purchase price was 
reduced so as to reflect a sharing of  
the inherent capital gains tax potential 
burden with the vendor. 

Approximately half the portfolio is 
offices and half warehousing. The 
buildings are substantially modern and 
of a high quality. The vacancy rate is 
12% although we have negotiated rental 
guarantees for two years on the 
majority of these vacancies. We are 
optimistic of achieving lettings during 
this period. 

The office investments are well located. 
Two are based in Zaventem close to 
Brussels airport another two are in 
central Brussels and the fifth in the 
Science Park in Louvain-La-Neuve. 

The industrial properties also included 
two in the Brussels area, a centrally 
located property in Anderlecht let to 
Hospithera N.V. and Transinter BVBA 
as well as a newly developed industrial 
unit in Asse in the outskirts of Brussels 
let to Stannah BVBA. The remaining 
warehouse units are in Heist-op-den-
Berg, Kontich, Mechelen, Namur, 
Westerlo, Wommelgem and Naninne.

Having acquired this portfolio and 
established the management and 
marketing links in Belgium we will 
seek to grow the portfolio further. 

France
One addition has been made to our 
portfolio in France which is a 
warehouse unit on the outskirts of 
Marseille. The property is let to Lidl on 
a 3/6/9 year lease and was acquired 
close to the year end in a situation 
where our ready availability of capital 
and ability to move quickly ensured the 
vendor could achieve a sale in a short 
period of time and we could obtain a 
well priced investment. 

The property was valued at €5.7 million 
at 31 December 2007 which gives a 

running yield in excess of 8% per 
annum and is itself an uplift in value 
from our acquisition price. 
Whilst we have seen fewer 
opportunities in France we remain keen 
to buy opportunistically. Indexation of 
leases in France have been particularly 
significant during the year adding to 
the income surplus generated from 
these properties. 

Overall the French portfolio is 
currently valued at approximately  
€28 million comprising four properties. 
The average period to a lease break or 
expiry is 6.2 years. 

Other assets
As noted in last year’s review the Group 
owned some residential investments in 
Wiesbaden in Germany. During 2007 
we added to this portfolio with three 
additional acquisitions of apartment 
blocks in Magdeburg. Together these 
added around €6 million of residential 
properties. We have seen values 
improved for our residential portfolio 
and continue to believe that German 
residential property is out of line with 
other countries in its values and that 
growth will continue. However at the 
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FRANCE

Marseille

France

development site and it is one of the 
very few in the mid Scotland area that 
can be delivered in the medium term 
both planning wise and technically. 
Again third party interest has been 
shown in acquiring the site and we are 
considering our options going forward. 

Finance
At 31 December 2007 the balance  
sheet shows shareholder’s funds of  
£231 million. There are currently 

178.4 million shares in issue and 
therefore the basic NAV in accordance 
with international financial reporting 
standards amounts to 129 pence per 
share. The diluted EPRA NAV which 
takes into consideration the Director’s 
valuation uplift of trading properties 
and the dilution through share options 
and adding back deferred tax on a 
revaluation of investment properties is 
138 pence per share compared to the 
2006 figure of 114 pence per share. 

At 31 December there were bank 
borrowings of £169 million which 
along with retained cash results in net 
gearing for the Group of 65% or a loan 
to value of approximately 36%. 
The Group has significant borrowing 
capacity part of which is already in 
place with our €230 million revolving 
debt facility with the Bank of Scotland. 

Our funding policy, where borrowing 
is used is to utilise prudent interest rate 
hedging which includes an element of 
short-term fixed interest rates. At  
31 December 2007 the average gross 
cost of borrowing for Hansteen was 
5.6%. €636,000 of financing costs were 
amortised in the period. Today the 

end of 2007 we received an offer for the 
Wiesbaden portfolio of approximately 
€22 million which crystallised a good 
profit on cost. We have taken the view 
that the release of capital and 
management time made this a sensible 
deal for the Group to undertake. 

The other non core holding is of our 90 
acre land plot in Gilston near Falkirk, 
Scotland. During 2007 the Government 
confirmed our site as a strategic 
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Group has three interest rate caps 
covering total borrowings of  
€100 million. The caps are set at 4%, 
4.5% and 5%. The interest rate caps 
originally cost £128,000 and were 
revalued in the 31 December 2007 
balance sheet at £235,000.

Additional hedging includes  
€50 million of interest rate swaps.  
At 31 December 2007 there were  
€25 million swapped at 4.16% and  
€25 million swapped at 4.29%. In  
the Balance Sheet these instruments  
showed a fair value of £144,000.

The Group finances its activities 
primarily through a mixture of equity, 
retained earnings, borrowings and 
surplus cash arising directly from its 
operations. During 2007 operations 
were largely transacted in Euros. In 
order to mitigate the currency risk 
borrowings have been arranged in Euro 
denomination, but for the equity 
funded investments the Group 
endeavours to substantially cover its risk 
through hedging instruments. The 
Group has three forward currency 
purchases to acquire Sterling on 27 July 
2009. The forward currency is to 
acquire £200 million for €282 million. 
These transactions cover approximately 
90% of the equity invested in Europe. 
During early 2007 Sterling was strong 
and the value of these hedging 
instruments was positive and the value 
of property investments was reduced. 
However in the second half of 2007 
there has been a significant 
strengthening of the Euro against the 
Pound which means that our property 

investments have significantly improved 
in value but the hedging instruments 
have reduced to negative value. Whilst 
the hedging arrangements are working 
perfectly for our requirements under 
IFRS accounting there is a mismatch in 
that the property value growth caused 
by currency movement is a balance 
sheet item and the movement in fair 
value of the currency hedging 
instrument is shown on the face of the 
profit and loss account. 

As a result our profit and loss account 
includes a charge of £11 million on the 
value of currency contracts, 
significantly reducing the stated profit 
before tax. In addition to the 
accounting mismatch there is also a 
mismatch in terms of distributability of 
the gains and losses on currency. 
Despite the excellent results for the 
year, under IFRS accounting the gains 
in value of properties through currency 
movement are non distributable 
whereas the losses on the hedging 
instrument to match those gains reduce 
distributable profits. 

As a result of this we sought 
shareholder’s approval to a reduction of 
share premium account which was 
confirmed at the EGM of 18 February 
2008. Following this meeting the Court 
approved a £60 million reduction on the 
19 March 2008, the result of which is to 
transfer £60 million from share 
premium reserves to profit and loss 
reserves enabling the Group to continue 
its dividend policy which in May 2008 
will result in the payment of a dividend 
of 3.2 pence per share. 

Outlook
We have assembled a focused and 
experienced team to carry the business 
forward over the next years 
supplemented by a number of tried and 
tested advisors and associates in our 
core European countries. Our portfolio 
is high yielding with that income 
coming from a large spread of tenants 
and locations. We have a strong Balance 
Sheet with low gearing, committed 
facilities and scope for further prudent 
borrowings to enable us to grow the 
portfolio. We believe that the era we 
are entering should favour professional, 
experienced management teams 
prepared to work their assets hard to 
add value rather than simply accumulate 
them in the hope of prices rising. We 
are happy that the fundamentals 
continue to validate our investment 
approach in Continental Europe and we 
are convinced that significant 
opportunities in the UK in the 
secondary industrial sector will arise in 
the foreseeable future. 

Morgan Jones and Ian Watson
Joint Chief Executives
7 April 2008
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Stephen Gee
Non-Executive Director
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        Period from
        27 October
       Year ended 2005 to
       31 December 31 December
       2007 2006
      Note £’000 £’000

Group
Revenue      5 18,400 16,012
Cost of sales       (1,751) (8,395)

Gross profit       16,649 7,617
Administrative expenses       (4,159) (2,847)

Operating profit before gains on investment properties     12,490 4,770
Gains on investment properties      9 19,614 14,789

Operating profit      7 32,104 19,559
(Losses)/gains on forward currency contract     10 (11,014) 1,304
Finance income      11 1,649 1,996
Finance costs      11 (4,549) (490)
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps     11 238 13
Foreign exchange gains/(losses)      11 1,946 (260)

Profit before tax       20,374 22,122
Tax      12 (6,799) (6,792)

Profit for the period       13,575 15,330

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent       13,472 15,330
Minority interests       103 –

Profit for the period       13,575 15,330

Earnings per share
Basic      13 8.1p 13.3p

Diluted      13 8.1p 13.3p

All results derive from continuing operations.

Income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2007
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Balance sheet
31 December 2007

     Group Company Group Company
     2007 2007 2006 2006
    Note £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Non-current assets
Goodwill    14 2,252 – – –
Property, plant and equipment    15 31 – 28 –
Investment property    16 391,242 – 139,593 –
Investment property held for sale    16 15,417 – – –
Investment in subsidiary undertakings   17 – 177,752 – 111,285
Deferred tax asset    25 2,885 2,885 – –
Derivative financial instruments    18 379 379 1,434 1,434

     412,206 181,016 141,055 112,719

Current assets
Trading properties    19 5,260 – 5,151 –
Trade and other receivables    20 3,781 6,954 2,485 6,418
Cash and cash equivalents    21 19,562 13,581 14,395 10,938

     28,603 20,535 22,031 17,356

Total assets     440,809 201,551 163,086 130,075

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables    22 (6,916) (1,162) (3,333) (920)
Current tax liabilities     (2,563) (142) (1,675) (1,653)
Borrowings    23 (2,579) – – –
Obligations under finance leases    24 (279) – – –

     (12,337) (1,304) (5,008) (2,573)

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings    23 (166,957) – (15,689) –
Obligations under finance leases    24 (3,218) – – –
Derivative financial instruments    18 (9,710) (9,710) – –
Deferred tax liabilities    25 (17,194) – (4,517) –

     (197,079) (9,710) (20,206) –

Total liabilities     (209,416) (11,014) (25,214) (2,573)

Net assets     231,393 190,537 137,872 127,502

Equity
Share capital    26 17,843 17,843 12,500 12,500
Share premium account     174,312 174,312 111,133 111,133
Translation reserve     13,287 – (1,142) –
Retained earnings     25,772 (1,618) 15,381 3,869

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent   231,214 190,537 137,872 127,502
Minority interest     179 – – –

Total equity     231,393 190,537 137,872 127,502

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 7 April 2008.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

M L JONES I R WATSON
Director  Director
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Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2007

    Share Share Translation Retained
    capital premium reserves earnings Total
    £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Group
Exchange differences arising on translation of overseas operations – – 16,143 – 16,143
Tax on items taken directly to equity   – – (1,714) – (1,714)

Net gain recognised directly in equity   – – 14,429 – 14,429
Profit for the year    – – – 13,472 13,472

Total recognised income and expense for the year  – – 14,429 13,472 27,901
Ordinary shares issued at a premium   5,343 64,657 – – 70,000
Cost of issue of shares at a premium   – (1,478) – – (1,478)
Share based payments    – – – 669 669
Dividends paid    – – – (3,750) (3,750)
Equity shareholders funds at 31 December 2006   12,500 111,133 (1,142) 15,381 137,872

Equity shareholders funds at 31 December 2007  17,843 174,312 13,287 25,772 231,214

Company
Loss for the year    – – – (2,406) (2,406)

Total recognised income and expense for the year  – – – (2,406) (2,406)
Ordinary shares issued at a premium   5,343 64,657 – – 70,000
Cost of issue of shares at a premium   – (1,478) – – (1,478)
Share based payments    – – – 669 669
Dividends paid    – – – (3,750) (3,750)
Equity shareholders funds at 31 December 2006   12,500 111,133 – 3,869 127,502

Equity shareholders funds at 31 December 2007  17,843 174,312 – (1,618) 190,537

As permitted by section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, the profit and loss account of the parent company is not presented as 
part of these accounts. The parent company’s loss for the financial year amounted to £2,406,000 (Period from 27 October 
2005 to 31 December 2006: profit £3,818,000).
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Cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 December 2007

        Period from
        27 October
       Year ended 2005 to
       31 December 31 December
       2007 2006
      Note £’000 £’000

Group
Net cash inflow from operating activities     28 8,475 292

Investing activities
Interest received       1,649 1,996
Additions to property, plant and equipment      (19) (39)
Additions to investment properties       (193,367) (126,823)
Proceeds on sale of investment properties      460 118
Additions to derivative financial instruments      (71) (117)
Acquisition of subsidiaries      27 (12,339) –

Net cash used in investing activities      (203,687) (124,865)

Financing activities
Dividend paid       (3,750) –
Proceeds from issue of shares at a premium      70,000 125,000
Costs of issue of shares at a premium      (1,478) (1,367)
Repayments of obligations under finance leases      (30) –
New bank loans raised (net of expenses)      132,800 15,335
Increase in bank overdrafts       1,826 –
Capital contribution from minority shareholders      69 –

Net cash from financing activities      199,437 138,968

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents      4,225 14,395
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period     14,395 –
Effect of foreign exchange rates       942 –

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period      19,562 14,395

Company
Net cash outflow from operating activities     28 (3,504) (6,306)

Investing activities
Interest received       4,950 4,640
Dividends received from subsidiaries      2,100 373
Investments in subsidiaries       (66,467) (111,285)
Additions to derivative financial instruments      (71) (117)

Net cash used in investing activities      (59,488) (106,389)

Financing activities
Dividend paid       (3,750) –
Proceeds from issue of shares at a premium      70,000 125,000
Costs of issue of shares at a premium      (1,478) (1,367)

Net cash from financing activities      64,772 123,633

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents      1,780 10,938
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period     10,938 –
Effect of foreign exchange rates       863 –

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period      13,581 10,938
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2007

1. General information
Hansteen Holdings PLC was incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act 1985 on 27 October 2005. The 
address of the registered office is 1 Berkeley Street, London W1J 8DJ. The comparative figures in these financial statements 
therefore cover the period from its date of incorporation on 27 October 2005 to 31 December 2006.

The Company was listed on AIM on 29 November 2005.

The Group’s principal activities are those of a property group investing mainly in industrial properties in Continental Europe.

These financial statements are presented in pounds sterling because that is the currency of the primary economic environment 
in which the Company operates. Foreign operations are included in accordance with the policies set out in note 3.

2. Adoption of new and revised standards
Standards, amendments and interpretations that became effective in 2007 and were adopted by the Group:
IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures and the associated revisions to IAS 1: Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 
32: Financial Instruments: Presentation and Disclosure.

The impact of the adoption of IFRS 7 and the changes to IAS 1 has been to expand the disclosures provided in these financial 
statements regarding the Group’s financial instruments and management of capital.

Standards, amendments and interpretations that became effective in 2007 but have no effect on the Group’s 
operations:
IFRIC 7  Applying the restatement approach under IAS 29, Financial reporting in hyperinflationary economies.
IFRIC 8 Scope of IFRS 2
IFRIC 9 Reassessment of embedded derivatives
IFRIC 10 Interim financial reporting and impairment

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been adopted 
early by the Group:
IFRS 8 Operating segments
IFRS 3 (Amendment)  Business Combinations
IAS 1  (Amendment) Presentation of financial statements
IAS 23 (Amendment) Borrowing costs 
IAS 27 (Amendment) Consolidated and separate financial statements

Published interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and not relevant to the Group’s operations:
IFRIC 11 Group and treasury share transactions
IFRIC 12 Service concession arrangements
IFRIC 13 Customer loyalty programmes
IFRIC 14 The limit on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding requirements and their interaction

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of the standards and interpretations in future periods will have no material impact 
on the financial statements of the Group except for additional segment disclosures when IFRS 8 comes into effect for periods 
commencing on or after 1 January 2009.

3. Significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation
The financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs’) 
adopted by the European Union and therefore the Group financial statements comply with Article 4 of the EU IAS 
Regulation.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of investment properties 
and certain financial instruments.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires the use of 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on management’s 
best knowledge of the amount, event or actions, actual results ultimately may differ from those estimates. The principal 
accounting policies are set out below.



Annual Report & Accounts 2007 19

3. Significant accounting policies continued
Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by the 
Company (its subsidiaries) made up to 31 December. Control is achieved where the Company has the power to govern the 
financial and operating policies of an investee entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group’s equity therein. 
Minority interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the original business combination (see below) and the 
minority’s share of changes in equity since the date of the combination. Losses applicable to the minority in excess of the 
minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of the Group except to the extent that the 
minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an additional investment to cover the losses.

The results of subsidiaries which commenced trading or which were acquired during the period are included in the 
consolidated income statement from the date on which trading commenced or the date from which they were acquired, as 
appropriate. 

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into 
line with those used by the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Business combinations
The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the 
aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments 
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the business combination. 
The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under IFRS 3 are 
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date except for non-current assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held 
for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, which are recognised and 
measured at fair value less costs to sell.

Goodwill
Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of 
the identifiable assets and liabilities of a subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled entity at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is 
initially recognised as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill 
which is recognised as an asset is reviewed for impairment annually. Any impairment is recognised immediately in profit or 
loss and is not subsequently reversed.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the relevant cash-generating units of the Group expected to 
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for 
impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount 
of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the 
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the 
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

On disposal of a subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled entity, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the 
determination of profit or loss on disposal.

Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale, except investment properties, are measured at the lower of 
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Investment properties classified as held for sale are carried at fair value in accordance with IAS 40 ‘Investment Properties’.

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale 
transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and 
the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be committed to the sale 
which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Property, plant and equipment
This comprises computer and office equipment. Computers and office equipment are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and any recognised impairment loss.



Hansteen Holdings PLC 20

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of computers and office equipment, over their estimated useful 
lives, using the straight-line method, on the following bases:
Computers 3 years
Office equipment 3 years

Investment properties
Investment properties, which comprises freehold and leasehold property held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, are 
treated as acquired when the Group assumes the significant risks and rewards of ownership. Acquisitions of investment 
properties including related transaction costs and subsequent additions of a capital nature are initially recognised in the 
accounts at cost. At each reporting date the investment properties are re-valued to their fair values based on a professional 
valuation at the balance sheet date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment property are included in 
the income statement for the period in which they arise.

Investments in subsidiary undertakings
Investments in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less provisions for impairment.

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Where a property is held under a head lease it is 
initially recognised as an asset as the sum of the premium paid on acquisition and the present value of minimum ground rent 
payments. The corresponding rent liability to the head leaseholder is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. 
Where only the buildings element of a property lease is classified as a finance lease, the ground rent payments for the land 
element are shown within operating leases.

Trading properties
Trading properties are included in the balance sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value and are treated as acquired 
when the Group assumes the significant risks and rewards of ownership. Cost includes development costs specifically 
attributable to properties in the course of development. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less further 
costs expected to be incurred to completion and disposal. 

Financial instruments
Trade receivables. Trade receivables are not interest bearing and are stated at their nominal value. Trade receivables are reduced 
by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Such allowances are raised based on an assessment of debtor 
ageing, past experiences and known tenant circumstances.

Trade payables. Trade payables are not interest bearing and are stated at their nominal value until settled.

Financial obligation including bank overdrafts. Debt instruments are stated at their net proceeds on issue. Finance charges 
including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs are spread over the period to redemption using 
the effective interest method. Finance charges and issue costs are added to the carrying value of the financial instrument to the 
extent that they are not settled in the period in which they arise.

Cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and demand deposits and other short-term highly 
liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in 
value.

Derivative financial instruments. The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency 
exchange rates and interest rates. The Group uses foreign exchange forward contracts and interest rate swap contracts to hedge 
these exposures. The Group does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.

The use of financial derivatives is governed by the Group’s policies approved by the Board of Directors.

The Group does not hedge account its current forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps and states them at fair value 
with changes in fair value included in the income statement.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods 
and services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts, VAT and other sales related taxes.

Rental income is recognised on an accruals basis. Where a lease incentive is granted, which does not enhance the value of the 
property, or a rent free period is granted, the effective cost is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period from the date of 
lease commencement to the earliest termination date. 

Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007
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3. Significant accounting policies continued
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable.

Revenue from the sale of trading and investment properties is recognised when the significant risks and returns have been 
transferred to the buyer. This is generally on unconditional exchange of contracts. The profit on disposal of trading and 
investment properties is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset at the 
commencement of the accounting period plus additions in the period.

Foreign currencies
The individual financial statements of each group company are presented in the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which it operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the results 
and financial position of each group company are expressed in pounds sterling, which is the functional currency of the 
Company, and the presentation currency for the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of the individual companies, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional 
currency (foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each balance 
sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on 
the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at 
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of 
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are included in 
profit or loss for the period. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are 
included in profit or loss for the period except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of 
which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity. For such non-monetary items, any exchange component of that gain 
or loss is also recognised directly in equity.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Company’s foreign operations 
are translated at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at the average 
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates 
at the date of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified as equity and transferred to the 
Company’s translation reserve. Such translation differences are recognised as income or as expenses in the period in which the 
operation is disposed of.

Operating leases
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to income on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income 
statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes 
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is 
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable 
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be 
available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured on a non-discounted basis.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is 
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited 
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when 
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income 
taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Share-based payments
The fair value of equity-settled share-based payments to employees is determined at the date of grant and is expensed on a 
straight-line basis over the vesting period based on the Company’s estimate of options that will eventually vest. Fair value is 
measured by use of a binomial model for the Employee Share Option Scheme. The expected life used in the model has been 
adjusted based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural 
considerations.
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The fair value of the shares to be awarded under the Long-Term Incentive Plan is determined at the measurement date by 
reference to the current share price at that date less the discounted value of estimated future dividends. 

4. Key sources of estimation and judgement
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date used in 
preparing these accounts are:

Property valuations
In determining the fair value of investment properties under IAS 40 at open market value, there is a degree of uncertainty and 
judgement involved. The Group uses external professional valuers to determine the relevant amounts.

Financial instruments
Certain derivative financial instruments are carried at fair value in accordance with IAS 39. These valuations are performed by 
third party external professionals.

Impairment of goodwill. Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which the goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the entity to estimate the 
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating units and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present 
value.

Valuation of Long-Term Incentive Plan (‘LTIP’)
In assessing whether any share awards are to be granted under the LTIP the Company is required to estimate the growth of the 
net assets of the Group over the period of the LTIP and the fair value of a share at the grant date and the balance sheet date. 
These estimates involve making a variety of assumptions concerning inter-alia rents and related costs, yields, administrative 
costs, interest rates, exchange rates, dividend rates and the rate and level of property acquisitions.

5. Revenue
An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows:

        Period from
        27 October
       Year ended 2005 to
       31 December 31 December
       2007 2006
       £’000 £’000

Property rental income       18,400 7,760
Proceeds from disposal of trading properties      – 8,252

       18,400 16,012

Interest receivable on bank deposits      1,599 1,977
Other interest receivable       50 19

       1,649 1,996

Total revenue in the period       20,049 18,008

Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007
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6. Business and geographical segments
Business segments
The Group’s primary reporting segments are the classification of its properties based on whether they are held for investment 
or trading. The secondary reporting segments are the classification of its properties based on geographic location.
The Company’s business is to invest in its subsidiaries and therefore it operates in a single segment.

a) Totals by business segment

  Period from 27 October 2005
 Year ended 31 December 2007 to 31 December 2006
   Trading Investment  Trading Investment
   properties properties Total properties properties Total
   £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Group
Property rental income   – 18,400 18,400 2 7,758 7,760
Sales of trading properties   – – – 8,252 – 8,252

Revenue   – 18,400 18,400 8,254 7,758 16,012
Direct property operating expenses  (62) (1,696) (1,758) (58) (757) (815)
Cost of sales of trading properties   7 – 7 (7,580) – (7,580)
Administrative expenses   (59) (2,954) (3,013) (139) (2,120) (2,259)

Operating profit/(loss) before gains on  
investment properties   (114) 13,750 13,636 477 4,881 5,358
Gains on investment properties   – 19,614 19,614 – 14,789 14,789

Segment result   (114) 33,364 33,250 477 19,670 20,147

Unallocated corporate expenses     (1,146)   (588)

Operating profit     32,104   19,559
(Losses)/gains on forward currency contract    (11,014)   1,304
Net finance (costs)/income     (716)   1,259

Profit before tax     20,374   22,122
Tax     (6,799)   (6,792)

Profit for the period     13,575   15,330

Direct property operating expenses relating to investment properties that did not generate any rental income were £35,200 
(Period from 27 October 2005 to 31 December 2006: £10,000).
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a) Totals by business segment continued
Balance sheet

   Trading Investment  Trading Investment
   properties properties Total properties properties Total
   £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Group
Goodwill   – 2,252 2,252 – – –
Property assets   5,260 406,659 411,919 5,151 139,593 144,744
Other assets   2 9,487 9,489 – 5,849 5,849

Segment assets   5,262 418,398 423,660 5,151 145,442 150,593

Unallocated corporate assets     17,149   12,493

Consolidated total assets     440,809   163,086

Segment liabilities   (11) (9,105) (9,116) (28) (2,317) (2,345)

Unallocated corporate liabilities     (200,300)   (22,869)

Consolidated total liabilities     (209,416)   (25,214)

Additions to properties   109 218,880 218,989 5,151 126,380 131,531

b) Totals by geographic segment
The Group’s property operations are located in Belgium, France, Germany, the Netherlands and the United Kingdom. The 
following table provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue by geographical market:

        Period from
        27 October
       Year ended 2005 to
       31 December 31 December
       2007 2006
       £’000 £’000

Group
Belgium       946 –
France       1,145 429
Germany       7,960 2,077
Netherlands       8,349 13,149
United Kingdom       – 357

       18,400 16,012

Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007



Annual Report & Accounts 2007 25

6. Business and geographical segments continued
b) Totals by geographic segment continued
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets and additions to properties analysed by the geographical 
area in which the assets are located:

        Additions to
        properties
     Carrying  Carrying Period from
     amount of  amount of 27 October
     segment Additions to segment 2005 to
     assets properties assets 31 December
     2007 2007 2006 2006
     £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Group
Belgium     44,093 36,880 – –
France     21,144 3,757 14,905 13,058
Germany     192,777 106,965 55,506 47,816
Netherlands     160,384 71,278 75,031 65,506
United Kingdom     5,262 109 5,151 5,151

     423,660 218,989 150,593 131,531

7. Profit for the period
Profit for the period has been arrived at after (charging)/crediting:

        Period from
        27 October
       Year ended 2005 to
       31 December 31 December
       2007 2006
       £’000 £’000

Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) included in administrative expenses    146 (73)
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) included in net finance income    1,946 (260)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment      (16) (10)
Increase in fair value of investment properties      19,595 14,759
Staff costs (see note 8)       2,447 1,476

The analysis of auditors’ remuneration is as follows:

        Period from
        27 October
       Year ended 2005 to
       31 December 31 December
       2007 2006
       £’000 £’000

Fees payable to the Company’s auditors and their associates for the audit of the Company’s and  
Group annual accounts       69 40
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors and their associates for other services to the Group:
- The audit of the Company’s subsidiaries pursuant to local statutory requirements   116 81

Total audit fees       185 121

- Tax services       212 26
- Other services       24 86

Total non-audit fees       236 112

Fees payable to Deloitte & Touche LLP and their associates for non-audit services to the Company are not required to be 
disclosed because the consolidated financial statements are required to disclose such fees on a consolidated basis.

Tax services fees paid to Deloitte & Touche LLP and their associates comprise fees for UK and overseas income tax, VAT and 
property tax advisory services.

In addition to the fees disclosed above fees amounting to £78,000 were paid to associates of Deloitte & Touche LLP for due 
diligence services relating to corporate acquisitions.
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8. Staff costs
The average monthly number of employees (including executive directors) was:

        Period from
        27 October
       Year ended 2005 to
       31 December 31 December
       2007 2006
       £’000 No

Administration       9 6

Their aggregate remuneration was:

        Period from
        27 October
       Year ended 2005 to
       31 December 31 December
       2007 2006
       £’000 £’000

Wages and salaries       1,422 1,181
Share-based payments       669 51
Social security costs       264 160
Other pension costs       92 84

       2,447 1,476

The amounts shown against pension costs comprise amounts payable by the Group to personal pension schemes of the 
employees.

9. Gains on investment properties

        Period from
        27 October
       Year ended 2005 to
       31 December 31 December
       2007 2006
       £’000 £’000

Increase in fair value of investment properties      19,595 14,759
Profit on disposal of investment properties      19 30

       19,614 14,789

10. (Losses)/gains on forward currency contract

        Period from
        27 October
       Year ended 2005 to
       31 December 31 December
       2007 2006
       £’000 £’000

(Decrease)/increase in fair value of forward currency contract     (11,014) 1,304

Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007
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11. Net finance (costs)/income

        Period from
        27 October
       Year ended 2005 to
       31 December 31 December
       2007 2006
       £’000 £’000

Interest receivable on bank deposits      1,599 1,977
Other interest receivable       50 19

Finance income       1,649 1,996

Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts      (4,502) (490)
Interest payable on obligations under finance leases     (47) –

Finance costs       (4,549) (490)

Net interest (paid)/received       (2,900) 1,506
Increase in fair value of interest rate swaps      238 13
Foreign exchange gains/(losses)        1,946 (260)

Net finance (costs)/income       (716) 1,259

12. Tax

        Period from
        27 October
       Year ended 2005 to
       31 December 31 December
       2007 2006
       £’000 £’000

UK current tax       1,024 1,665
Foreign current tax       1,242 566

Total current tax       2,266 2,231
Deferred tax (see note 25)       4,533 4,561

Total tax charge       6,799 6,792

UK Corporation tax is calculated at 30 per cent (Period from 27 October 2005 to 31 December 2006: 30%) of the estimated 
assessable profit for the period.

Taxation for other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the income statement as follows:

        Period from
        27 October
       Year ended 2005 to
       31 December 31 December
       2007 2006
       £’000 £’000

Profit before tax       20,374 22,122

Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 30%      6,112 6,637
Tax effect of :
Expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit    68 116
Short-term timing differences       1 5
Marginal relief       – (8)
Effect of different tax rates of overseas subsidiaries     576 42
Effect on deferred tax balances due to the change in UK tax rate from 30% to 28%  
effective from 6 April 2008.       335 –
Prior year tax credit       (293) –

       6,799 6,792

In addition to the amount charged to the income statement in the year to 31 December 2007, tax amounting to £1,714,000 
(Period from 27 October 2005 to 31 December 2006: £439,000) relating to the unrealised exchange losses on translation of 
overseas operations has been credited directly to translation reserves (see statement of changes in equity).
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13. Earnings per share and net asset value per share
The calculations for earnings per share, based on the weighted average number of shares, are shown in the table below.

The European Public Real Estate Association (‘EPRA’) has issued recommended bases for the calculation of certain per share 
information and these are included in the following tables:

        Period from
        27 October
     Year ended   2005 to
     31 December   31 December
    Weighted 2007  Weighted 2006
    average Earnings  average Earnings
    number of per  number of per
   Earnings shares share Earnings shares share
   £’000 £’000 p £’000 £’000 p

Basic EPS   13,472 166,430 8.1 15,330 115,223 13.3
Dilutive share options   – 67 – – 43 –

Diluted EPS   13,472 166,497 8.1 15,330 115,266 13.3

Adjustments:
Revaluation gains on investment properties  (19,595)   (14,759)  
Profit on the sale of investment properties  (19)   (30)  
Tax on the sale of investment properties  6   9  
Change in fair value of financial instruments  10,776   (1,317)  
Current tax on the change in fair value of  
financial instruments    (395)   395  
Deferred tax   4,814   4,529  

Diluted EPRA EPS   9,059  5.4 4,157  3.6

The calculations for net asset value per share are shown in the table below:

     31 December   31 December
     2007   2006
   Equity  Net asset Equity  Net asset
   shareholder’s Number of value per shareholder’s Number of value per
   funds shares share funds shares share
   £’000 £’000 p £’000 £’000 p

Basic NAV   231,214 178,435 129.6 137,872 125,000 110.3
Unexercised share options   428 400 n/a 428 400 n/a

Diluted NAV   231,642 178,835 129.5 138,300 125,400 110.3

Adjustments:
Goodwill   (2,252)   –  
Fair value of trading properties   740   849  
Deferred tax   17,272   4,529  

Diluted EPRA NAV   247,402  138.3 143,678  114.6

Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007
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14. Goodwill

        Total
        £’000

Cost and carrying amount:
At 1 January 2007        –
Recognised on acquisition of subsidiary undertakings      2,252

At 31 December 2007        2,252

The goodwill arose on the acquisition, on 31 August 2007, of a portfolio of Belgian subsidiary companies which is considered 
to be the relevant cash-generating unit (see note 17 for details of the subsidiaries acquired).

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be 
impaired. At 31 December 2007 the Group considers that there is no indication of impairment of the goodwill and 
consequently no impairment review has been performed.

15. Property, plant and equipment

      Office Computer
      equipment equipment Total
      £’000 £’000 £’000

Cost:
At 31 December 2006      1 37 38
Additions      – 19 19

At 31 December 2007      1 56 57

Accumulated depreciation:
At 31 December 2006      – 10 10
Charge for the period      – 16 16

At 31 December 2007      – 26 26

Net book value:
At 31 December 2007      1 30 31

At 31 December 2006      1 27 28

Prior year
Cost:
At 27 October 2005      – – –
Additions      1 37 38

At 31 December 2006      1 37 38

Accumulated depreciation:
At 27 October 2005      – – –
Charge for the period      – 10 10

At 31 December 2006      – 10 10

Net book value:
At 31 December 2006      1 27 28

At 27 October 2005      – – –
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16. Investment property

        £’000

At 31 December 2006        139,593
Additions – property purchases        196,705
Additions – capital expenditure        689
Acquisition of subsidiaries        36,847
Disposals        (440)
Transfer to investment property held for sale       (15,417)
Revaluations included in income statement       19,595
Exchange adjustment        13,670

At 31 December 2007        391,242

Balance at 27 October 2005        –
Additions – property purchases        126,137
Additions – capital expenditure        244
Disposals        (88)
Revaluations included in income statement       14,759
Exchange adjustment        (1,459)

At 31 December 2006        139,593

        £’000

Investment property held for sale
At 31 December 2006        –
Transfer from investment property        15,417

At 31 December 2007        15,417

All investment properties are stated at market value as at 31 December 2007 and have been valued by independent 
professionally qualified external valuers, King Sturge LLP. The valuations have been prepared in accordance with the 
Appraisal and Valuation Standards published by The Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors and with IVA1 of the 
International Valuation Standards.

The Group has pledged certain of its investment properties to secure bank loan facilities and a finance lease granted to the 
Group.

Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007
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17. Investment in subsidiary undertakings

      Shares in Loans to
      subsidiary subsidiary
      undertakings undertakings Total
      £’000 £’000 £’000

Company
Cost and net book value:
Balance at 31 December 2006      45,910 65,375 111,285
Additions/(repayments)      78,731 (12,264) 66,467

At 31 December 2007      124,641 53,111 177,752

Details of all of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 December 2007 are as follows:

       Proportion Proportion
       of of
      Place ownership voting power
      of interest held
      incorporation % %

Hansteen Belgium Limited     Great Britain 100 100
Hansteen Developments Limited     Great Britain 100 100
Hansteen Europe Limited     Great Britain 100 100
Hansteen Land Limited     Great Britain 100 100
Hansteen Limited     Great Britain 100 100
Hansteen France SAS     France 100 100
Hansteen Germany Limited     Great Britain 100 100
Hansteen Germany (2) Limited     Great Britain 100 100
Hansteen Germany (3) Limited     Great Britain 100 100
Hansteen Germany Residential Limited    Great Britain 100 100
Hansteen Netherlands B.V.     The Netherlands 100 100
Hansteen Ormix B.V.*     The Netherlands 50 100
Arman B01 BVBA*     Belgium 100 100
Erangra NV*     Belgium 100 100
Hert BVBA*     Belgium 100 100
I.P.I Nossegem NV*     Belgium 100 100
Jezusstraat 22 NV*     Belgium 100 100
Small Island Management NV*     Belgium 100 100
Tycoons Immo BVBA*     Belgium 100 100
Vignée Invest NV*     Belgium 100 100
Waterloo Investments NV*     Belgium 100 100

Each of the undertakings listed above is engaged in property development, investment and management.

*Acquired 31 August 2007, see note 27. 
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18. Derivative financial instruments

     Forward Interest Interest
     currency rate rate
     contract caps swaps Total
     £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Group and Company
Financial assets and liabilities held for trading
Fair value at 31 December 2006     1,337 97 – 1,434
Additions at cost     27 44 – 71
Revaluations included in income statement    (11,074) 94 144 (10,836)

Fair value at 31 December 2007     (9,710) 235 144 (9,331)

Currency derivatives
The Group utilises currency derivatives to hedge significant future transactions and cash flows.

On 25 July 2006 the Company entered into a forward currency contract to sell Euros 155,159,000 for £110,000,000 on 
27 July 2009. On 30 March 2007 the Company entered into a forward currency contract to sell Euros 71,214,926 for 
£50,000,000 on 27 July 2009. On 8 November 2007 the Company entered into a forward currency contract to sell Euros 
56,316,215 for £40,000,000 on 27 July 2009. The fair value of the Company’s forward currency contracts is based on market 
values of equivalent instruments at the balance sheet date.

Interest rate caps
The Group uses interest rate derivatives to manage its exposure to interest rate movements on its bank borrowings.

On 6 November 2006 the Company entered into a Euros 25,000,000 interest rate cap at 4% with a start date of 26 January 
2007 and a maturity date of 26 October 2009. On 8 November 2007 the Company entered into a Euros 25,000,000 interest 
rate cap at 5% with a start date of 26 February 2008 and a maturity date of 28 February 2011. The fair value of the Company’s 
interest rate caps is based on market values of equivalent instruments at the balance sheet date.

Interest rate swaps
The Group uses interest rate swaps to manage its exposure to interest rate movements on its bank borrowings.

On 3 March 2007 the Company entered into a Euros 25,000,000 interest rate swap at 4.165% with a start date of 26 April 
2007 and a maturity date of 26 April 2010. On 8 November 2007 the Company entered into a Euros 25,000,000 interest rate 
swap at 4.29% with a start date of 26 February 2008 and a maturity date of 28 February 2011. The fair value of the Company’s 
interest rate swaps is based on market values of equivalent instruments at the balance sheet date.

19. Trading properties

       2007 2006
       £’000 £’000

Land and related costs       5,260 5,151

The trading properties were valued at fair market value by the Directors at 31 December 2007 at £6,000,000.

Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007
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20. Trade and other receivables

     Group Company Group Company
     2007 2007 2006 2006
     £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Trade receivables     1,749 – 356 –
Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings    – 6,227 – 5,700
Other receivables     484 – 1,754 –
Prepayments and accrued income     1,548 727 375 718

     3,781 6,954 2,485 6,418

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximate their fair value.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivables. The amounts presented in the balance sheet are net of 
allowances for doubtful receivables. An allowance for impairment is made where there is an identified loss event which, based 
on previous experience is evidence of a reduction in the recoverability of the cash flows. The Group has no significant 
concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number of counterparties and customers. There are no 
customers who represent more than 5% of the total balance of trade receivables and there are no debtors over six months.

21. Cash and cash equivalents

     Group Company Group Company
     2007 2007 2006 2006
     £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Cash and cash equivalents     19,562 13,581 14,395 10,938

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three 
months or less. The carrying value of these assets approximates to their fair value.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by 
international credit-rating agencies.

22. Trade and other payables

     Group Company Group Company
     2007 2007 2006 2006
     £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Trade payables     1,388 13 597 18
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings    – 849 – 745
Other payables     929 – 710 –
Accruals and deferred income     4,599 300 2,026 157

     6,916 1,162 3,333 920

Trade creditors and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs. The average 
credit period taken for trade purchases by the Company is three days. For most suppliers no interest is charged on the trade 
payables for the first 30 days from the date of the invoice. Thereafter, interest charged on the outstanding balances at various 
interest rates. The Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are paid within the credit 
timeframe. The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates to their fair value.



Hansteen Holdings PLC 34

23. Borrowings

       2007 2006
       £’000 £’000

Secured at amortised cost
Bank overdrafts       1,825 –
Bank loans       169,088 16,845
Unamortised borrowing costs       (1,377) (1,156)

       169,536 15,689

Total borrowings
Amount due for settlement within 12 months      2,579 –
Amount due for settlement after 12 months      166,957 15,689

Bank loans       169,536 15,689

The principal borrowing represents Euros 149,000,000 drawn down under a five year Euros 230,000,000 revolving bank loan 
facility entered into on 25 July 2006 by Hansteen Holdings PLC and certain of its subsidiary undertakings. The loan is secured 
on the shares of the borrowing subsidiaries and their investment properties and is guaranteed by Hansteen Holdings PLC and 
the borrowing subsidiaries. Interest on the amounts drawn under the loan facility is charged at Euribor plus 0.8%.

Hansteen Ormix BV, a Dutch subsidiary has a number of bank loans secured on its properties in the Netherlands with an 
expiry date of 31 December 2009 charged at Euribor plus 0.9%. The aggregate amount outstanding at 31 December 2007 in 
respect of these bank loans was £42,881,000 (2006: £nil).

The Belgian subsidiaries have a number of facilities secured on all of the Belgian properties with expiry dates ranging from 
31 December 31 2009 to 31 March 2026 charged at Euribor plus 0.75% to 1.5%. The aggregate amount outstanding at 
31 December 2007 in respect of these bank loans was £16,800,000 (2006: £nil).

The Directors estimate that the book value of the Groups’ bank loans approximates to their fair value.

       2007 2006
       £’000 £’000

Maturity
The bank loans are repayable as follows:
Within one year or on demand       753 –
Between one and two years       45,152 –
In the third to fifth years inclusive       114,079 16,845
Over five years       9,104 –

       169,088 16,845

Undrawn committed facilities
Expiring after more than two years      59,475 138,131

       Floating rate borrowings
      2007  2006
     % £’000 % £’000

Interest rate and currency profile
Euros     5.31 169,088 4.35 16,845

A number of interest rate caps and swaps have been entered into in respect of the amounts drawn under the loan facility at 
31 December 2007 to hedge Euro borrowings at an average rate of 4.39% (see note 18). 

Notes to the financial statements continued
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24. Obligations under finance leases

 Minimum lease Present value of
 payments lease payments
     2007 2006 2007 2006
     £ £ £ £

Amounts payable under finance leases:
Within one year     279 – 126 –
In the second to fifth years inclusive    1,131 – 553 
After five years     3,877 – 2,818 –

     5,287 – 3,497 –
Less: future finance charges     (1,790) – n/a n/a

Present value of lease obligations     3,497 – 3,497 –

Less: amount due for settlement within 12 months  
(shown under current liabilities)       (279) –

Amount due for settlement after 12 months      3,218 –

The lease is held in I.P.I. Nossegem NV, a Belgian subsidiary and is denominated in Euros. The lease term outstanding at 
31 December 2007 is 16 years. For the year ended 31 December 2007, the interest rate implicit in the lease was 5.228%. 
Interest rates are fixed every five years and interest rate and capital repayments adjusted to reflect this. 

The fair value of the Group’s lease obligations approximates their carrying amount.

The Group’s obligations under the finance lease are secured by the lessors’ rights over the leased assets.

25. Deferred tax
Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after 
offset) for financial reporting purposes:

     Group Company Group Company
     2007 2007 2006 2006
     £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Deferred tax assets     2,885 2,885 – –
Deferred tax liabilities     (17,194) – (4,517) –

     (14,309) 2,885 (4,517) –

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised and movements thereon during the reporting period.

      UK tax on
      retained
   Revaluation Accelerated Short-term earnings
   of investment tax timing in overseas Tax
   properties depreciation differences subsidiaries losses Total
   £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Group
At 31 December 2006   4,136 346 64 343 (372) 4,517
Acquired (see note 27)   4,185 – 459 – (486) 4,158
Charge/(credit) to income   6,696 777 (2,904) (23) (13) 4,533
Exchange differences   1,048 85 44 – (76) 1,101

At 31 December 2007   16,065 1,208 (2,337) 320 (947) 14,309

Company
At 31 December 2006   – – – – – –
Charge/(credit) to income   – – (2,885) – – (2,885)

At 31 December 2007   – – (2,885) – – (2,885)

At the balance sheet date the Group has unused tax losses amounting to £2,796,000 (2006: £1,206,000) available for offset 
against future profits. These losses arose principally due to the non-recurring start up costs of overseas operations. It is 
expected that the tax losses will be utilised in the foreseeable future and a deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of 
these losses. 

At the balance sheet date, the amount of temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries for which 
deferred tax liabilities have been fully provided is £320,000 (2006: £343,000).
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26. Share capital

       2007 2006
       £’000 £’000

Authorised
250,000,000 (2006: 200,000,000) ordinary shares of 10p each     250,000 20,000

Issued and fully paid
178,435,117 (2006: 125,000,002) ordinary shares of 10p each     17,843 12,500

The share capital comprises one class of ordinary shares carrying no right to fixed income.

Movements in issued share capital

       2007 2006
       Number £’000

Balance at 1 January 2007       125,000,002 12,500
Shares issued for cash on 23 March 2007      53,435,115 5,343

Balance at 31 December 2007       178,435,117 17,843

27. Acquisition of subsidiaries
On 31 August 2007 the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of a portfolio of nine companies incorporated and 
registered in Belgium (see note 17) for cash consideration of £11,880,000. Each of these companies is engaged in property 
investment and management in Belgium. This transaction has been accounted for by the purchase method of accounting.

       Book Fair 
       value value
       £’000 £’000

Net assets acquired:
Investment properties       24,534 36,847
Trade and other receivables       311 311
Cash and cash equivalents       70 70
Trade and other payables       (724) (724)
Current tax liabilities       (419) (419)
Bank loans       (18,568) (18,568)
Obligations under finance leases       (3,202) (3,202)
Deferred tax liabilities       (458) (4,158)

       1,544 10,157

Goodwill        2,252

Total consideration        12,409

Satisfied by:
Cash        11,880
Directly attributable costs        529

        12,409

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition
Cash consideration        12,409
Cash and cash equivalents acquired       (70)

        12,339

The difference between book value and fair value at acquisition relates to the revaluation of investment properties by 
independent valuers in accordance with the requirements of IAS 40 and the related deferred tax.

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of the subsidiaries is attributable to a sharing of the inherent capital gains tax potential 
burden with the vendor.

The subsidiaries contributed £946,000 revenue and £302,000 to the Group’s profit before tax for the period between the date 
of acquisition and the balance sheet date.

If the acquisition of the subsidiaries had been completed on the first day of the financial year, Group revenues for the period 
would have been £20,607,000. The accounts of the subsidiaries acquired were prepared according to Belgian GAAP and no 
fair valuations of the investment properties were carried out on 1 January 2007. For this reason it is not practical to determine 
what the Group profit attributable to equity holders of the parent on an IFRS basis would have been if the acquisition of the 
subsidiaries had been completed on the first day of the financial year.
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28. Notes to the cash flow statement

       Group Company
       Period from Period from
       27 October 27 October
       2005 to 2005 to
     Group Company 31 December 31 December
     2007 2007 2006 2006
     £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Profit/(loss) for the period     13,575 (2,406) 15,330 3,818
Adjustments for:
Share-based employee remuneration    669 669 51 51
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment    16 – 10 –
Gains on investment properties     (19,614) – (14,789) –
Losses/(gains) on forward currency contracts    11,014 11,014 (1,304) (1,304)
Dividends from subsidiaries     – (2,100) – (373)
Net finance costs/( income)     1,720 (5,983) (1,259) (4,563)
Tax     6,799 (1,944) 6,792 1,643

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital  14,179 (750) 4,831 (728)
Increase in trading properties     (109) – (5,151) –
Increase in receivables     (1,107) (535) (2,255) (6,419)
Increase in payables     2,908 241 3,334 931

Cash generated by/(used in) operations    15,870 (1,044) 759 (6,216)
Income taxes paid     (3,559) (2,453) (330) –
Interest paid     (3,837) (7) (137) (90)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities   8,475 (3,504) 292 (6,306)

29. Operating lease arrangements
The Group as lessee

        Period from 
        27 October 
        2005 to
        31 December
       2007 2006
       £’000 £’000

Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised as an expense in the year:   260 181

As at the balance sheet date the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:

       2007 2006
       £’000 £’000

Within one year       410 229
In the second to fifth years inclusive      403 259
After five years       3,354 1,136

       4,167 1,624

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group under ground rent leases for certain of its investment 
properties and rentals payable in respect of its head office property under a licence agreement with an unexpired term of 
12 months as at the balance sheet date.

The Group as lessor
The Group leases all of its investment properties under operating leases. As at the balance sheet date the Group had contracted 
with tenants for the following future aggregate minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases: 

       2007 2006
       £’000 £’000

Within one year       26,093 10,103
In the second to fifth years inclusive      64,601 21,771
After five years       30,115 8,688

       120,809 40,562
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30. Share-based payments
During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group had two share-based payment arrangements with employees. Both of 
the Group’s share-based payment schemes are equity settled, either by award of options to acquire ordinary shares (Employee 
Share Option Scheme) or award of ordinary shares (Long-Term Incentive Plan). 

The total share-based payment charge relating to Hansteen Holdings PLC shares for the year was made up as follows:

        Period from
        27 October
       Year ended 2005 to
       31 December 31 December
       2007 2006
       £’000 £’000

Employee share option scheme      a) 54 51
Long-term incentive plan      b) 615 –

       669 51

a) Equity-settled share option scheme
The 2005 Share Option Scheme is open to certain senior employees of the Group. In the case of options granted within three 
months of admission of shares to trading on AIM, options are exercisable at the price at which shares were placed in 
connection with the float, being £1 per share. All options granted after this date are exercisable at a price equal to the average 
quoted market price of the ordinary shares of Hansteen Holdings PLC on the date of grant. The options have a three year 
vesting period that is not subject to performance conditions. If the options remain unexercised after a period of ten years from 
the date of grant, the options expire. Options are normally forfeited if the employee leaves the Group before the options vest. 
In accordance with IFRS 2 ‘Share-based Payment’ the fair value of equity-settled share-based payments to employees is 
determined at the date of grant and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period based on the Group’s estimate 
of options that will eventually vest. Fair value is calculated using a Binomial pricing model.

Details of the share options outstanding during the period are as follows:

        Weighted
        average
       Number exercise
       of share price
       options pence

Outstanding at 31 December 2006 and 31 December 2007     400,000 107.1

        Years

Weighted average remaining contractual life       8.03

The options outstanding under the scheme are exercisable at exercise prices ranging from 100.0p to 128.5p in years from 2009 
up to 2016. During the period no options were granted. (Period from 27 October 2005 to 31 December 2006: 400,000 at a 
weighted average exercise price of 107.1p per share) The aggregate of the fair values of the outstanding options granted dates is 
£160,000 determined according to the Binomial model.

The inputs into the Binomial model are as follows:

       2007 2006

Weighted average share price       124.0p 124.0p
Weighted average exercise price       107.1p 107.1p
Expected volatility       25% 25%
Expected life       3-8 years 3-8 years
Risk free rate       4.16% 4.16%
Expected dividend yield       3% 3%

Notes to the financial statements continued
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30. Share-based payments (continued)
The expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the Company’s share price over the period 
from the date the Company floated on AIM on 29 November 2005 and the dates the options were granted and also by 
comparison with the volatilities of similar companies over the same period. The expected life used in the model has been 
adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural 
considerations.

b) Equity-settled long-term incentive scheme (LITP)
Details of the Group’s LTIP scheme are described in the remuneration report. 

On 25 May 2007 the LTIP was amended following approval by the shareholders at the Company’s Annual General Meeting, 
so that any payment payable is satisfied in full by the issue of ordinary shares of the Company to any relevant executive 
director, rather than in cash.

The assumptions used in the calculations for the current years are set out in the table below. There are no comparatives 
because in the period to 31 December 2006 the LTIP scheme was a cash-settled scheme rather than an equity settled scheme. 

        Period from
        27 October
       Year ended 2005 to
       31 December 31 December
       2007 2006
       £’000 £’000

Date of grant       22/11/2005 n/a
Number of instruments       1,344,610 n/a
Share price at the date of grant       100.0p n/a
Share price at the date of measurement      98.50p n/a
Contractual life       4 years n/a
Risk free interest rate       5% n/a
Expected outcome of meeting performance criteria (at date of grant)    100% n/a

Vesting is dependent on the Company’s NAV growth per share exceeding a compound growth rate of 10 per cent per annum 
in the four years ending on 31 December 2009.

A progressive dividend growth policy is assumed in all fair value calculations.

31. Events after the balance sheet date
On 19 March 2008 the High Court of Justice, Chancery Division, Companies Court approved the reduction of the 
Company’s Share Premium Account by a sum of £60,000,000. The reduction in the Share Premium Account will result in an 
increase in the Company’s distributable reserves.

On 7 April 2008 the Board declared that an interim dividend of 3.2 pence per ordinary share will be paid on 16 May 2008 to 
shareholders on the register at the close of business on 18 April 2008. 
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32. Related party transactions
a) Group
Trading transactions
During the year, group subsidiaries entered into trading transactions with related parties who are not members of the Group:

  Amounts owed
 Purchase of services to related parties
      Period from
      27 October
     Year ended 2005 to
     31 December 31 December
     2007 2006 2007 2006
     £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Ormix BV     640 – – –

Ormix B.V., a company incorporated in the Netherlands, owns 50% of the issued ordinary shares of Hansteen Ormix B.V. 
The remaining 50% of the issued ordinary shares of Hansteen Ormix B.V. are owned by Hansteen Netherlands B.V which is a 
wholly-owned subsidiary undertaking of Hansteen Holdings PLC. Ormix B.V. is therefore considered to be a related party of 
the Group.

Purchases of services from Ormix B.V. were made at prices comparable with those paid by the Group for similar services from 
unrelated parties. At 31 December 2007 the amounts outstanding in respect of these trading transactions was £nil (2006: 
£nil).

Other amounts due to related parties:

       2007 2006
       £’000 £’000

Amount due to Ormix BV       368 –

The amount due to Ormix B.V. represents a capital contribution from Ormix B.V. to Hansteen Ormix B.V. which was in the 
process of being formally documented as such at 31 December 2007. On 1 April 2008 the formal documentation was 
completed and the amount due to Ormix was converted to capital. The amount due to Ormix B.V was unsecured and did not 
bear interest.

Remuneration of key management personnel
The aggregate remuneration of the Directors, who are the key management personnel of the Group, is set out below, as 
required by IAS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’. Further information about the remuneration of individual directors is provided 
in the audited part of the Remuneration Report on pages 61 to 62. 

        Period from
        27 October
       Year ended 2005 to
       31 December 31 December
       2007 2006
       £’000 £’000

Short-term employee benefits       983 1,001
Post-employment benefits       66 69

       1,049 1,070

In addition to the above remuneration the Executive Directors are entitled to share-based payments awards linked to 
Company performance over the four-year period to 31 December 2009. Current projections, using assumptions based on 
current interest rates, current exchange rates and current property yields indicate that the liability to the Executive Directors 
under the scheme for the period up to 31 December 2007 is estimated to be £615,000 (2006: £nil).

Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007
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32. Related party transactions continued
b) Company
Transactions with subsidiaries

The Company enters into loans with its subsidiaries to provide long-term funding for their investment activities. Interest is 
charged on these loans at Libor plus 0.8%.

The Company provides interest-free loans to its development subsidiary, Hansteen Land Limited to finance its operations.

The Company is charged management fees by its management subsidiary, Hansteen Limited which undertakes day-to day 
management of the Hansteen Group on behalf of the Company. Management fees charged by Hansteen Limited to other 
subsidiaries of the Hansteen Group are recovered by the Company on behalf of Hansteen Limited.

A summary of the transactions with the subsidiaries is as follows:

        Period from
        27 October
       Year ended 2005 to
       31 December 31 December
       2007 2006
       £’000 £’000

Interest-bearing loans made to subsidiaries      – 65,375
Interest-bearing loans repaid by subsidiaries      12,264 –
Interest-free loans made to subsidiaries      249 5,279
Loan fee disbursements recharged to subsidiaries      487 226
Interest income received in respect of interest-bearing loans     3,749 2,730
Dividend income received       2,100 373
Management fees charged to the Company      498 457
Management fees charged to the Company and recharged to subsidiaries    2,384 1,918

The balances outstanding at the year end from transactions with subsidiaries are as follows:

        Period from
        27 October
       Year ended 2005 to
       31 December 31 December
       2007 2006
       £’000 £’000

Interest-bearing loans due from subsidiaries      53,111 65,375
Amounts due from subsidiaries included in trade and other receivables    6,227 5,700
Amounts due to subsidiaries included in trade and other receivables    (849) (745)

       58,489 70,330

Remuneration of key management personnel
The aggregate remuneration of the Directors and key management personnel of the Company are considered to be the same as 
for the Group.
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33. Financial instruments
Capital risk management
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as going concerns while 
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure of the 
Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in note 23, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable 
to equity holders of the parent, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings as disclosed in the balance sheet.

Gearing ratio
The Group’s management reviews the capital structure on a semi-annual basis in conjunction with the Board. As part of this 
review, management considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital and debt.

The gearing ratio at the year end is as follows:

       2007 2006
       £’000 £’000

Debt       169,536 15,689
Cash and cash equivalents       (19,562) (14,395)

Net debt       149,974 1,294

Equity       231,214 137,872

Net debt to equity ratio       64.9% 0.9%

Carrying value of investment and trading properties     411,919 144,744

Net debt to value ratio       36.4% 0.9%

Debt is defined as long- and short-term borrowings, as detailed in note 23. The Group is not subject to externally imposed 
capital requirements.

Significant accounting policies
Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of 
measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial 
liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 3 to the financial statements.

Categories of financial instruments

  Group  Company  Group  Company
 2007 2007 2007 2007 2006 2006 2006 2006
 Carrying Fair Carrying Fair Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
 Value Value Value Value Value Value Value Value
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Financial assets
Designated as held for trading
Forward currency contracts – – – – 1,337 1,337 1,337 1,337
Interest rate caps 235 235 235 235 97 97 97 97
Interest rate swaps 144 144 144 144 – – – –

 379 379 379 379 1,434 1,434 1,434 1,434

Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007
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33. Financial instruments continued
Categories of financial instruments continued

  Group  Company  Group  Company
 2007 2007 2007 2007 2006 2006 2006 2006
 Carrying Fair Carrying Fair Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
 Value Value Value Value Value Value Value Value
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Other financial assets
Trade and other  
receivables 3,781 3,781 6,954 6,954 2,485 2,485 6,418 6,418
Cash and cash deposits 19,562 19,562 13,581 13,581 14,395 14,395 10,938 10,938

 23,343 23,343 20,535 20,535 16,880 16,880 17,356 17,356

Total 23,722 23,722 20,914 20,914 18,314 18,314 18,790 18,790

Financial liabilities
Designated as held  
for trading
Forward currency  
contracts (9,710) (9,710) (9,710) (9,710) – – – –

At amortised cost
Secured bank loans (167,711) (167,711) – – (15,689) (15,689) – –
Bank overdrafts (1,825) (1,825) – – – – – –

 (169,536) (169,536) – – (15,689) (15,689) – –

Other financial  
liabilities
Trade and other payables (6,916) (6,916) (1,162) (1,162) (3,333) (3,333) (920) (920)
Finance lease payables (3,497) (3,497) – – – – – –
Tax payables (2,563) (2,563) (142) (142) (1,675) (1,675) (1,653) (1,653)

 (12,976) (12,976) (1,304) (1,304) (5,008) (5,008) (2,573) (2,573)

Total (192,222) (192,222) (11,014) (11,014) (20,697) (20,697) (2,573) (2,573)

Fair value of financial instruments
The fair values of derivative financial assets and financial liabilities are determined by independent experts in accordance with 
generally accepted pricing models.

Financial risk management objectives
The Group monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Group through internal risk reports 
which analyses exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk (including currency risk, interest 
rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by using derivative financial instruments to hedge these risk exposures. 
The use of financial derivatives is governed by the Group’s policies approved by the Board of Directors. Compliance with 
policies and exposure limits is reviewed by the Board and management on a continuous basis. The Group does not enter into 
or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.

The Group’s management reports quarterly to the Board and Audit committee, an independent body that monitors risks and 
policies implemented to mitigate risk exposures.

Market risk
The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. 
The Group enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign currency 
risk, including:

interest rate swaps and caps to mitigate the risk of rising interest rates; and
forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge the exchange rate risk arising on translation of the Group’s investment in 
foreign operations which have the Euro as their functional currency.

•
•
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33. Financial instruments continued
Foreign currency risk management
The Group’s exposure to foreign currency exposure arises from the fact that there are foreign operations which transact 
business denominated in Euros, with the translation of the local trading performance and local net asset to Sterling for each 
financial period and at each balance sheet date giving rise to an exposure at the Group to fluctuations in the Euro: Sterling 
exchange rate. The Group’s approach to managing this exposure is to fund investments in Euro denominated operations with 
debt that is covered by forward currency contracts to limit the overall exposure of the Group. By managing the exposure the 
impact of translating overseas profits and assets has been minimal so these are not specifically hedged.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the reporting 
date are as follows:

     Group Company Group Company
     2007 2007 2006 2006
     £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Gross currency assets     18,937 13,037 10,498 7,090
Gross currency liabilities     (170,913) – (16,845) –

Net exposure     (151,976) 13,037 (6,347) 7,090

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
The Group is mainly exposed to the currency of Belgium, France, Germany and the Netherlands (Euro currency).

At 31 December 2007 the net assets of the Group were £231,214,000 (2006: £137,872,000) of which £225,411,000 were 
denominated in Euros (2006: £128,874,000). At 31 December 2007 the Group had fixed forward contracts to sell Euros 
282,690,000 for £200,000,000 (2006: Euros 155,159,000 for £110,000,000) and therefore the net assets exposure to currency 
fluctuations was £25,411,000 (2006: 18,874,000). 

The effect of a 5% increase in the value of the Euro compared to Sterling would increase the net assets of the Group at 
31 December 2007 by £1,337,000 (2006: £993,000). The effect of a 5% decrease in the value of the Euro compared to 
Sterling would decrease the net assets of the Group at 31 December 2007 by £1,210,000 (2006: 898,000).

Forward foreign exchange contracts
In the current year, the Group has entered into various forward currency contracts. These are entered into to hedge the net 
investment in foreign operations but have not been designated as hedges. These contracts are fair valued through the income 
statement.

The following table details the forward foreign currency contracts outstanding as at the year end:

  Average  Currency  Contract  Fair
  exchange  contract  value  value
  rates 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
 2007 2006 EUR 000’s EUR 000’s £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Group and Company
Sell Euros buy Sterling 1.4105 1.4105 155,159 155,159 – – (5,121) 1,337
Sell Euros buy Sterling 1.4243 – 71,215 – – – (2,799) –
Sell Euros buy Sterling 1.4079 – 56,316 – – – (1,790) –

Total 1.4135 1.4105 282,690 155,159 – – (9,710) 1,337

As at 31 December 2007, the aggregate amount of unrealised losses under forward foreign exchange contracts recognised in 
the income statement is £11,014,000 (2006: unrealised gains of £1,304,000). The impact of the translation of the foreign 
operations which has been deferred in equity for which the contracts are designed to minimise the exposure are £16,143,000 
gain (2006: £1,581,000 loss).

Interest rate risk management
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk as entities in the Group borrow funds at floating interest rates. The risk is managed 
by the Group by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings, by the use of interest rate swap 
contracts and interest rate cap contracts. See note 18 for details of the interest rate derivatives.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management 
section of this note.

Notes to the financial statements continued
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33. Financial instruments continued
Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and non-
derivative instruments during the year. 

 Increase/(decrease) in profit before tax
       Group Company
       Period from Period from
       27 October 27 October
     Year ended Year ended 2005 to 2005 to
     31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
     2007 2007 2006 2006
     £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Increase interest rate by 1%     (3) 612 424 443
Decrease interest rate by 1%     246 (367) (399) (418)

There would have been no effect on amounts recognised directly in equity. 

Interest rate swap and cap contracts
Under interest rate swap contracts, the Group agrees to exchange the difference between fixed and floating rate interest 
amounts calculated on agreed notional principal amounts. Such contracts enable the Group to mitigate the risk of changing 
interest rates on the fair value of issued fixed rate debt held and the cash flow exposures on the issued variable rate debt held. 
The average interest rate is based on the outstanding balances at the end of the financial period.

The interest rate swaps settle on a quarterly basis. The floating rate on the interest rate swaps is three months EURIBOR. The 
Group settles the difference between the fixed and floating interest rate on a net basis.

Under interest rate caps the Group pays a premium to limit its exposure to floating interest rates to a fixed upper limit 
determined at the time the interest rate cap contract is entered into.

The interest rate caps settle on a quarterly basis. The floating rate on the interest rate caps is three months EURIBOR. If the 
floating rate exceeds the capped rate the Group receives the difference between the fixed and capped interest rate on a net 
basis.

The Group does not hedge account for its interest rate swaps or interest rate caps and states them at fair value with changes in 
fair value included in the income statement.

The following tables detail the notional principal amounts and remaining terms of interest rate swap and cap contracts 
outstanding as at the reporting date:

Economic hedges to the cash flows

 Average contract fixed interest rate Notional principal amount Fair value
   2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
   % % EUR’000 EUR’000 £’000 £’000

Group and Company
Interest rate swaps – outstanding receive  
 floating pay fixed contracts
In more than two years but less than five  4.2 – 50,000 – 144 –

Interest rate caps – outstanding receive floating 
  pay fixed contracts
In more than one year but less than two  4.0 – 25,000 – 184 –
In more than two years but less than five  5.0 4.0 25,000 25,000 51 97

     50,000 25,000 235 97

Credit risk management
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is £23,343,000 (2006: £16,880,000) comprising trade and other receivables 
and cash and cash deposits. The Group’s principal credit risk is attributable primarily to its trade receivables £1,749,000 (2006: 
£356,000) which consist principally of rents due from tenants. The balance is low relative to both the current and net assets of 
the Group and the Company.
 
Potential customers are evaluated for creditworthiness and where necessary collateral is secured. There is no concentration of 
credit risk within the portfolio to either geographical business segment or company as the Group has a well spread diverse 
customer base with no one customer accounting for more than 3% of the gross rent roll. 
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33. Financial instruments continued
Other receivables consist principally of property purchase deposits held in client accounts at solicitors and VAT receivables. 
These items do not give rise to significant credit risk. 

Cash deposits are held at banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies.

Liquidity risk management
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which monitors the Group’s short, 
medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements on a regular basis. The Group manages liquidity risk 
by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities. As at 31 December 2007 the Group had 
additional undrawn committed borrowing facilities of £59,475,000 (2006: £138,131,000) at its disposal to further reduce 
liquidity risk.

Liquidity and interest risk tables
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables 
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest dates on which the 
Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

        2007 Maturity
   Weighted 
   average
   effective  Less than One to Two to More than
   interest rate one year two years five years five years Total
   % £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Group      
Non-interest bearing   – 9,479 – – – 9,479
Variable rate debt instruments   5.43 52,703 8,843 124,980 12,716 199,242
Finance lease liability   5.23 279 283 848 3,877 5,287

    62,461 9,126 125,828 16,593 214,008

Company
Non-interest bearing   – 1,304 – – – 1,304

 
        2006 Maturity
   Weighted 
   average
    effective  Less than One to Two to More than
   interest rate one year two years five years five years Total
   % £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Group      
Non-interest bearing   – 5,008 – – – 5,008
Variable rate debt instruments   4.35 733 733 19,043 – 20,509

    5,741 733 19,043 – 25,517

Company      
Non-interest bearing   – 2,573 – – – 2,573

Notes to the financial statements continued
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33. Financial instruments continued
Liquidity and interest risk tables continued
The following table details the Group’s expected maturity for its non-derivative financial assets. The tables have been drawn 
up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial assets including interest that will earned on those assets 
except here based on the earliest dates on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and 
principal cash flows.

        2007 Maturity
    Less than  One to Two to More than
    one year two years five years five years Total
    £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Group      
Non-interest bearing    3,781 – – – 3,781
Variable interest rate instruments    19,562 – – – 19,562

    23,343 – – – 23,343

Company
Non-interest bearing    6,954 – – – 6,954
Variable interest rate instruments    13,581 – – – 13,581

    20,535 – – – 20,535

        2006 Maturity
    Less than  One to Two to More than 
    one year two years five years five years Total
    £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Group
Non-interest bearing    2,485 – – – 2,485
Variable interest rate instruments    14,395 – – – 14,395

    16,880 – – – 16,880

Company
Non-interest bearing    6,418 – – – 6,418
Variable interest rate instruments    10,938 – – – 10,938

    17,356 – – – 17,356

The following table details the Group’s liquidity analysis for its derivative financial instruments. The table has been drawn up 
based on the undiscounted net cash inflows/(outflows) on the derivative instrument that settle on a net basis and the 
undiscounted gross inflows and (outflows) on those derivatives that require gross settlement. When the amount payable or 
receivable is not fixed, the amount disclosed has been determined by reference to the interest and foreign currency rates as at 
the reporting date.

        2007 Maturity
    Less than One to Two to More than
     one year two years five years five years Total
    £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Group and Company
Net settled:
Interest rate swaps    166 166 115 – 447
Interest rate caps    125 103 –  208

Gross settled:
Foreign exchange forward contracts - outflows   – (207,570) – – (207,570)
Foreign exchange forward contracts - inflows   – 200,000 – – 200,000

    291 (7,301) 115 – (6,915)
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        2006 Maturity
    Less than  One to Two to More than
    one year two years five years five years Total
    £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Group and Company

Gross settled:
Foreign exchange forward contracts - outflows   – – (104,548) – (104,548)
Foreign exchange forward contracts - inflows   – – 110,000 – 110,000

    – – 5,452 – 5,452

Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 
31 December 2007.

Principal activities 
The Company is the parent company of a Group whose principal activities comprise property investment, development, 
management and all associated business. The Group has initially focused on industrial property investments in Continental 
Europe, although it will also seek to profit from opportunistic acquisitions in other property sectors both in the UK and 
abroad. 

The subsidiary undertakings principally affecting the profits or net assets of the Group in the period are listed in note 17 to the 
financial statements.
 
Business review 
Hansteen’s focus is on Continental European industrial investments which in the opinion of the Board have high yields, 
cheaper financing costs and greater opportunities for value improvement through asset management than can currently be 
achieved in the UK. To date these investments have been primarily in Belgium, France, Germany and the Netherlands. A 
smaller part of the Group’s activity is dedicated to opportunistic property investment opportunities which to date have 
included land and residential investments. A more detailed review of the business for the year is included in the Joint chief 
Executives’ Review on pages 4 to 12.
 
Results 
The results for the year ended 31 December 2007 are shown in the income statement on page 14 of the financial statements. As 
shown on page 14 the pre-tax profit for the year ending 31 December 2007 was £20.4 million (Period from 27 October 2005 
to 31 December 2006: £22.1 million) and the net assets are shown in the balance sheet as £231.4 million (31 December 2006: 
£137.9 million). The diluted EPRA NAV per share was 138.3p (31 December 2006: 114.6p). In the Director’s view the pre-
tax profits and diluted EPRA NAV growth are the most appropriate performance measures for the Group.
 
Dividend 
The Directors have resolved to pay an interim dividend, of 3.2p (2007: 3.0p) per ordinary share to be paid on 16 May 2008 to 
ordinary shareholders on the register on 18 April 2008.

More detailed information about the Group’s business, activities and financial performance is incorporated into this report by 
reference and can be found in the Chairman’s Statement and the Joint Chief Executive’s Review on pages 2 to 12.

Financial instruments and risk management 
The Board agrees and reviews policies and financial instruments for risk management. Further information on financial 
instruments is contained in note 33 to the financial statements.

Principal risks and uncertainties 
Risk management is an important part of the Group’s system of internal controls. All management staff and the Board 
regularly consider the significant risks which it believes are facing the Group, identify appropriate controls and if necessary 
instigate action to improve those controls. There will always be some risk when undertaking property investments but the 
control process is aimed at mitigating and minimising these risks where possible. The key risks identified by the Board are  
as follows:
 

The value of property investments fall as a result of macro economic factors, over reliance on a single tenant or single 
industry type. The Board believes these risks are reduced due to its policy of assembling a portfolio with a wide spread of 
different tenancies both in terms of actual tenants and industry type as well as undertaking thorough due diligence on 
acquisitions. Where possible, purchases are achieved at low capital values and with due investigation of tenant finances. 
By investing in property in mainland Europe the Group is exposed to a foreign currency exchange rate risk. In response to 
this risk the Group’s borrowings are in a Euro denominated loan facility and therefore, to the extent that investments are 
financed by debt, a self hedging mechanism is in place. In relation to the equity element of our Euro investments the Group 
has entered into three separate forward contracts to sell an aggregate of Euros 282 million in exchange for £200 million on 
27 July 2009. This leaves approximately £26 million of the existing investment in Euro denominated assets un-hedged. As 
additional equity is applied and valuation and profit surpluses are achieved the Board will review its currency exposure 
with potentially further contracts being taken.

•

•
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued
A further significant risk relates to the Group’s borrowings. Over-borrowing by the Group, significant interest rate 
increases or facility covenant breaches could represent a significant risk to the Group. In response to these risks Hansteen 
maintains a prudent approach to its borrowing. At 31st December 2007 net debt including obligations under finance leases 
of £153 million represented approximately 66% of the Group’s equity. For all money borrowed consideration is given to 
appropriate hedging instruments. As at 31st December 2007, £37 million borrowings were subject to interest rate caps and 
swaps at Euribor rates of between 4% and 5%. The Group actively monitors covenant requirements of the loan on a regular 
basis and compliance certificates are prepared. 

A further risk identified by the Board encompasses environmental risks. In addition to the need to act as a responsible 
landlord there may, in some circumstances, be occasions when pollution on a site owned by a property investment company 
becomes its responsibility. Each acquisition undertaken by the Group includes an environmental report from a specialist 
consultancy. These reports may highlight the need for further investigation and in some cases remediation. The Group’s 
policy is then to either undertake such investigations or remediation or potentially reject the purchase as no longer viable.

Share capital 
On 23 March 2007, the Company issued 53,435,115 fully paid new ordinary shares of 10p each for cash consideration of 131p 
per share. This resulted in an increase in the issued share capital from 125,000,002 ordinary shares to 178,435,117 ordinary 
shares.

On 25 May 2007, the Company’s authorised share capital was increased to 250,000,000 ordinary shares by the creation of 
50,000,000 ordinary shares of 10p each.

On 19 March 2008, the High Court of Justice, Chancery Division, Companies Court approved the reduction of the 
Company’s Share Premium Account by a sum of £60,000,000. 

Details of the authorised and issued share capital, together with details of the movements in the Company’s issued share capital 
during the year are shown in note 26. The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income. 
Each share carries the right to one vote at general meetings of the Company. 

There are no specific restrictions on the size of a holding nor on the transfer of shares, which are both governed by the general 
provisions of the Articles of Association and prevailing legislation. 

The Directors are not aware of any agreements between holders of the Company’s shares that may result in restrictions on the 
transfer of securities or on voting rights. 

Details of employee share schemes are set out in note 30. 

No person has any special rights of control over the Company’s share capital and all issued shares are fully paid.

Directors and their interests 
The following served as Directors throughout the period:

J D Hambro Non-Executive Chairman 
M L Jones Joint Chief Executive
I R Watson Joint Chief Executive
S T Gee  Non-Executive Director
R S Mully Non-Executive Director

With regard to the appointment and replacement of directors, the Company is governed by its Articles of Association, the 
Companies Acts and related legislation. The Articles themselves may be amended by special resolution of the shareholders. 

Messrs Hambro and Watson will retire and submit themselves for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Mr Hambro joined the Board in November 2005 and is Chairman of J O Hambro Capital Management Group Limited and 
Director of Primary Health Properties PLC. Mr Hambro was Non-Executive Chairman of Ashtenne from 1997 until 2005.

Mr Watson, a founder director of Hansteen Holdings PLC, qualified as a solicitor with Gouldens. Mr Watson was a founder 
director and Joint Chief Executive of Ashtenne from 1989 to 2005.

•

•
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Directors and their interests continued
The beneficial interests of the Directors in the ordinary shares of the Company are as follows:

       Ordinary  Ordinary
       shares shares
        of 10p each at of 10p each at
       31 December 31 December
        2007 2006

M L Jones       2,600,001 2,500,001
I R Watson       2,600,001 2,500,001
J D Hambro       200,000 200,000
S T Gee       200,000 200,000
R S Mully       200,000 200,000

       5,800,002 5,600,002

On 15 January 2008 Messrs M L Jones and I R Watson each acquired 100,000 ordinary shares of 10p each in the Company 
thereby increasing their beneficial interests in the ordinary shares of the Company to 2,700,001 ordinary shares of 10p each.

None of the Directors had any interests in any material contract during the year relating to the business of the Group.

Subject to the Company’s Memorandum of Association, the Articles, any legislation and any directions given by special 
resolution, the business of the Company will be managed by the Directors, who may exercise all the powers of the Company, 
whether relating to the management of the business of the Company or not. In particular, the Board may exercise all the 
powers of the Company to borrow money and to mortgage or charge any of its undertakings, property, assets and uncalled 
capital and to issue debentures and other securities and give security for any debt, liability or obligation of the Company to 
any third party.

Directors’ indemnities 
The Company has made qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its Directors which were made during 
the year and remain in force at the date of this report.

Substantial interests in the share capital of the company 
The Company has been notified of the following interests that represent 3% or more of the issued share capital of the 
Company at 1 April 2008.

       No. of ordinary
       shares held Percentage

Lansdowne Partners Limited       17,675,000 9.91
Standard Life Investments Limited       15,665,194 8.78
Jupiter Asset Management Limited       13,263,217 7.43
Artemis Investment Management Limited      12,825,937 7.19
Taube Hodson Stonex Partners Limited on behalf of client funds that it manages or controls  12,111,930 6.79
Lloyds TSB Group plc       11,077,966 6.21
Threadneedle Investments       9,406,000 5.27
Thames River Capital LLP       5,447,269 3.05

       97,472,513 54.63

 
Payment policy for creditors 
The Group’s policy is to settle all agreed liabilities within the terms established with suppliers. At 31 December 2007 there 
were three days’ purchases outstanding (31 December 2006: four days) in respect of the Company’s trade creditors. 

Charitable and political donations 
During the year, the Group made charitable donations of £nil (Period from 27 October 2005 to 31 December 2006: £6,250) 
to charities serving the communities in which the Group operates. There were no political donations in the year (Period from 
27 October 2005 to 31 December 2006: £nil).
 

Directors’ Report continued
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Auditors 
In the case of each of the persons who are Directors of the Company at the date when this report was approved:

So far as each of the Directors is aware, there is no relevant audit information (as defined in the Companies Act 1985) of 
which the Company’s auditors are unaware; and
Each of the Directors has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director to make themselves aware of any 
relevant audit information (as defined) and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information. 

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of S234ZA of the Companies Act 
1985.

Deloitte & Touche LLP have expressed their willingness to continue in office as auditors and a resolution to reappoint them 
will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
 
Approved by the Board of Directors 
and signed on behalf of the Board

R P LOWES
Secretary
7 April 2008

•

•
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, Directors’ Remuneration Report and the financial statements 
in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. The Directors are required by the 
IAS Regulation to prepare the group financial statements under International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as 
adopted by the European Union and have also elected to prepare the parent company financial statements in accordance with 
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union. The financial statements are also required by law to be properly prepared in 
accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

International Accounting Standard 1 requires that financial statements present fairly for each financial year the Company’s 
financial position, financial performance and cash flows. This requires the faithful representation of the effects of transactions, 
other events and conditions in accordance with the definitions and recognition criteria for assets, liabilities, income and 
expenses set out in the International Accounting Standards Board’s ‘Framework for the preparation and Presentation of 
Financial Statements’. In virtually all circumstances, a fair presentation will be achieved by compliance with all applicable 
International Financial Reporting Standards. Directors are also required to:

properly select and apply accounting policies;
present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and 
understandable information; and 
provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable users to 
understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity’s financial position and financial 
performance.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the 
financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 
1985. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the 
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the 
Company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements 
may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

•
•

•
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Hansteen Holdings PLC
We have audited the group and parent company financial statements (the ‘’financial statements’’) of Hansteen Holdings PLC 
for the year ended 31 December 2007 which comprise the Group Income Statement, the Group and Parent Company Balance 
Sheets, the Group and Parent Company Cash Flow Statements, the Group and Parent Company Statements of Changes in 
Equity and the related notes 1 to 33. These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out 
therein. We have also audited the information in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that is described as having been 
audited.

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985. 
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state 
to them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume 
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or 
for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report, the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the financial 
statements in accordance with applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the 
European Union are set out in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited in 
accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the financial 
statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly prepared in accordance with 
the Companies Act 1985 and, as regards the group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. We also report to you 
whether in our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with the financial statements. The 
information given in the Directors’ Report includes that specific information presented in the Chairman’s Statement and Joint 
Chief Executive’s Review that is cross referred from the Business Review section of the Directors’ Report.

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, the company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received 
all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding directors’ 
remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed.

Although not required to do so, the directors have voluntarily chosen to make a corporate governance statement detailing 
their compliance with the 2006 Combined Code. We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects the 
company’s compliance with the nine provisions of the 2006 Combined Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules of 
the Financial Services Authority, and we report if it does not. We are not required to consider whether the board’s statements 
on internal control cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the group’s corporate governance 
procedures or its risk and control procedures.

We read the other information contained in the Annual Report as described in the contents section and consider whether it is 
consistent with the audited financial statements. We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any 
apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements. Our responsibilities do not extend to any 
further information outside the Annual Report.

Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing 
Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited. It also includes an assessment of the 
significant estimates and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the 
accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s and company’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in 
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements and the part of the 
Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other 
irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the 
financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited. 
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Opinion
In our opinion:

the group financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, of 
the state of the group’s affairs as at 31 December 2007 and of its profit for the year then ended;
the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European 
Union as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1985, of the state of the parent company’s affairs 
as at 31 December 2007; 
the financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly prepared in 
accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and, as regards the group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation; 
and
the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with the financial statements.

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors 
London
7 April 2008

•

•

•

•

Independent Auditors’ Report continued
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Corporate Governance

Statement of compliance 
Although not required to do so by the AIM Rules, the Directors have decided to provide corporate governance disclosures 
comparable with those required of a listed company. 

Section 1 of the Combined Code on Corporate Governance that was issued in 2006 by the Financial Reporting Council (‘the 
Combined Code’), as appended to the Listing Rules, sets out the Principals of Good Corporate Governance which are 
applicable to listed companies incorporated in the United Kingdom. The Board is committed to high standards of risk 
management and internal control and, as such, supports the principles of Corporate Governance set out in the Combined 
Code. The way in which it applies these principles is set out below and in the Report of the Remuneration Committee on 
page 59.

Due to the small number of Directors, the Board does not consider it appropriate to establish a nomination committee to 
make recommendations to the Board on new board appointments and, as each of the Non-Executive Directors is independent, 
the Board does not consider it necessary to nominate a senior independent director. Similarly due to the small number of 
directors the Board does not consider it necessary to implement a formal process of evaluating the effectiveness of the Board, 
its committees and its directors. Except for these matters, throughout the year ended 31 December 2007, the Company has 
been in compliance with the Code Provisions set out in Section 1 of the Combined Code. 

A summary of the system of governance adopted by the Company follows:

Relations with shareholders
The Executive Directors regularly meet with institutional shareholders and analysts. Private investors are also encouraged to 
meet with the Board and to participate in the Annual General Meeting. The Chairmen of the Audit and Remuneration 
Committees are available to answer questions, where appropriate, at the Annual General Meeting.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS Details of the Directors are set out on page 49. The Board consists of three independent 
Non-Executive Directors, including the Chairman, and two Executive Directors. The roles and responsibilities of the 
Chairman, Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors are clearly defined. The Board is satisfied that the Non-
Executive Directors, each of whom is independent from management and has no commercial or other connection with the 
Company, are able to exercise independent judgement. The appointment of new directors is a matter for the Board as a whole. 
The Board is responsible to shareholders of the Company for the strategy and future development of the Group and the 
efficient management of its resources. As a result, the Board has a schedule of matters reserved for its decision, which includes 
approval of annual budgets, acquisition and divestment policy, approval of major capital projects, the raising of finance and 
management policies. The Board is supplied, in a timely fashion, with the information it needs to enable it to discharge its 
duties. The Board is also kept informed of changes in relevant legislation and changing commercial risks, and each Director 
has access to independent professional advice and the advice and services of the Company Secretary. All Directors are required 
to submit themselves for re-election by rotation at least every three years. 

The schedule below sets out the number of principal Board and committee meetings held during the year ended 31 December 
2007 together with individual attendance by Board Members at those meetings.

       Audit Remuneration
      Board Committee Committee

J D Hambro      7 3 1
I R Watson      7 – –
M L Jones      8 – –
S T Gee      8 3 1
R S Mully      8 3 1
Number of Meetings during the period     8 3 1

The Board has the following standing Committees:

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee comprises J D Hambro (Chairman), S T Gee and R S Mully. It is responsible for making 
recommendations to the Board on all aspects of remuneration policy for Executive Directors. The Committee’s report is set 
out on pages 59 to 62.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises S T Gee (Chairman), J D Hambro and R S Mully. Senior representatives of the external 
auditors, Executive Directors and senior management may be invited to attend the meetings. The committee reviews 
Hansteen’s external audit arrangements including the independence and objectivity of the auditors and the level of non-audit 
services, internal controls and the merits of establishing an internal audit function. Given the size of the Group and the close 
involvement of the Joint Chief Executives, the Committee do not believe that an internal audit function is merited at this 
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Audit Committee continued
time. The Committee also reviews the interim and full year financial statements prior to their submission to the Board; the 
application of the Group’s accounting policies and any changes to financial reporting requirements.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee and of the Audit Committee are available for inspection.

Internal control
An ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the most significant risks faced by the Group has been in place 
throughout the year and up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts. That process which accords with the 
Turnbull guidance and the Board’s review of that process is set out below. 

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the Group’s system of internal controls, including the review of its 
effectiveness and suitable monitoring procedures, in order to safeguard shareholders’ investment and the assets of the Group as 
well as the integrity of its accounting records and provide reliable information for use within the business and for publication. 
The Directors acknowledge that such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve 
business objectives and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. 

The Directors have reviewed, as part of the year-end procedures, the effectiveness of the system of internal control for the 
period under review and up to the date of this report, the key element of which is a risk management process whereby key 
risks to achieving our objectives and strategy as well as related controls and monitoring procedures in respect of those controls 
are identified in a risk register. At each Audit Committee, the risk register is reviewed and updated where appropriate and 
reports received from the executive on control procedures, and any areas for improvement are agreed for subsequent action.

This process is supported by:

Management structure
There is a clear organisational structure with well-defined lines of reporting and responsibility.

Financial reporting
There are management reporting disciplines including performance monitoring and profit and cash forecasting.

Investment appraisal
The Group has a clearly defined framework for capital and development expenditure and subsequent on going appraisals.

In addition, the key internal controls include regular meetings of the Board and Audit Committee whose overall 
responsibilities are set out above.

During the course of its reviews of the system of internal control, the Board has not identified nor been advised of any failings 
or weaknesses which it has determined to be significant. Therefore a confirmation in respect of necessary actions has not been 
considered appropriate. 

Going concern
After making appropriate enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to 
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in 
preparing the financial statements.
 

Corporate Governance continued
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This report has been prepared in accordance with Schedule 7A to the Companies Act 1985. The report also meets the relevant 
requirements of the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority and describes how the Board has applied the Principles 
of Good Governance relating to directors’ remuneration.

The Regulations require the auditors to report to the Company’s members on the ‘auditable part’ of the Directors’ 
Remuneration Report and to state whether in their opinion that part of the report has been properly prepared in accordance 
with the Companies Act 1985 (as amended by the Regulations). The report has therefore been divided into separate sections 
for audited and unaudited information.

Companies trading on AIM are not required to provide a formal remuneration report. However, in line with current best 
practice, the Directors provide the following information to enable a better understanding as to how Directors’ remuneration 
is determined. 

Unaudited information
a) The Remuneration Committee (the ‘Committee’)
The Committee, which is constituted in accordance with the Combined Code, comprises J D Hambro (Chairman), S T Gee 
and R S Mully. The Committee meets regularly and no less than twice a year to consider and establish or recommend to the 
Board, Company policy and the remuneration of the Executive Directors. In addition, the Committee also administers the 
Company’s long-term incentive plan and share option scheme.

b) Remuneration policy
In determining an appropriate remuneration policy for Executives the Committee’s objective is to attract, retain and motivate 
experienced and high calibre individuals, who are committed to achieving the Company’s corporate goals and achieving 
consistently high performance in its sector.

In implementing the policy, the Committee takes into account remuneration packages available within other companies, 
including property companies, comparable to Hansteen, as well as the Group’s overall financial performance.

The remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors is determined by the Board within limits set out in the Articles of 
Association.

There are four main elements of the remuneration package for executive directors:
basic annual salary and benefits;
annual bonus payments, which up to 100% of basic salary;
long-term incentive plans; and
pension arrangements.

The Company’s policy is that a substantial proportion of the remuneration of the Executive Directors should be performance-
related. As described below, Executive Directors may earn annual bonus payments of up to 100% of their basic salary together 
with the benefits of participation in long-term incentive plans.

Executive Directors are not entitled to accept appointments outside the Company without the prior written consent of the 
Board, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld.

c) Remuneration of Executive Directors
The remuneration packages for the Executive Directors include the following elements:

i) Basic salary and benefits
Basic salaries for Executive Directors and other senior executives are reviewed by the Committee normally annually or 
otherwise on promotion having regard to competitive market practice and also to Group and individual performance. Current 
benefits include a company allowance, medical insurance and life assurance cover and permanent health insurance cover.

ii) Annual performance-related bonus
The Executive Directors are entitled to a performance-related bonus each year based on criteria set annually by the 
Committee to reward excellent financial performance and the achievement of strategic objectives that would meet the 
expectations of investors as at the beginning of the year.

The amount payable to the Executive Directors in any one year is up to 100% of their salary.

Currently up to 50% of salary is payable to the Executive Directors as a bonus assuming the pre-tax profits in the year exceed 
budgets. Additionally up to 50% of salary is payable to the Executive Directors as a bonus assuming the Committee considers 
that the strategic objectives for the year have been achieved.
 

•
•
•
•

Report of the Remuneration Committee
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Unaudited information continued
iii) Long-Term Incentive Plans
The Executive Directors are entitled to a bonus payment linked to Company performance. The bonus payable will depend on 
the Company’s NAV growth per share exceeding a compound growth rate of 10 per cent per annum (‘Target NAV’) in the 
four years ending on 31 December 2009. For the purposes of the incentive scheme NAV is taken to be the fully diluted EPRA 
NAV definition. To the extent that NAV per ordinary share (including dividends and other returns to shareholders) exceeds 
Target NAV per share, 12.5 per cent of such excess multiplied by the number of ordinary shares in issue on 31 December 2009 
will be payable to each of the Executive Directors as a bonus. This bonus scheme will be repeated to reward performance in 
each subsequent three-year period commencing on 1 January 2010, with the relevant dates for determining the figures to 
calculate the bonus altering to accurately reflect each three-year period.

On 25 May 2007 the Long-Term Incentive Plan was amended following approval by the shareholders at the Company’s 
Annual General Meeting, so that any payment payable is satisfied in full by the issue of ordinary shares of the Company to any 
relevant executive director, rather than in cash. The Committee believes that this change more clearly aligns the interests of 
the Executive Directors with those of the shareholders and furthermore, the accounting implications of continuing with a cash 
based scheme may affect the ability of the Board of the Company to sustain the dividend yield growth expected to be paid to 
the shareholders. The price per share to be used when determining the number of shares which an Executive Director is 
entitled to pursuant to the amended Long-Term Incentive Plan shall be the average mid-market quotation for such shares on 
AIM for the first 20 dealing days immediately following the end of the relevant period (being the period ending on 
31 December 2009 and thereafter each subsequent three-year period commencing on 1 January 2010).

iv) Pensions
The Company makes contributions equivalent to 16% of their basic salaries to the self-administered pension fund of the 
Executive Directors.
 
d) Performance graph
The following graph shows the Company’s performance, measured by total shareholder return, compared with the 
performance of the FTSE All Share Real Estate Index also measured by total shareholder return. The FTSE All Share Real 
Estate Index has been selected for this comparison because it is the index against which the Group’s performance can best be 
compared.

Total shareholder return

Total shareholder return is calculated based on share price growth with dividends reinvested.

Report of the Remuneration Committee continued
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Unaudited information continued
e) Directors’ contracts
It is the Company’s policy that Executive Directors should have contracts with an indefinite term providing for a maximum of 
one year’s notice. However, it may be necessary occasionally to offer longer notice periods to new directors.

The service contracts of M L Jones and I R Watson are both dated 22 November 2005. Both Directors’ contracts continue 
until terminated by not less than twelve months’ written notice. In the event of termination by the Company, the Directors’ 
contracts provide for compensation in lieu of notice of an amount equal to the basic salary and other contractual entitlements 
over the immediately preceding twelve month period (excluding the long-term incentive plan), and shall be subject to 
deductions for income tax and national insurance contributions as appropriate.

The Non-Executive Directors each have specific terms of engagement and do not have service contracts with the Company. 
The Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and reappointment at the Annual General Meeting.
The remuneration of Non-Executive Directors, including the Chairman, is determined by the Board as a whole.

Messrs J D Hambro and I R Watson will retire and submit themselves for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General 
Meeting.
 
Audited information
a) Aggregate Directors’ remuneration

        Period from
       Year  27 October
       ended  2005 to
       31 December 31 December
       2007 2006
       £’000 £’000

Emoluments       883 903
Money purchase pension contributions      66 69

Total       949 972

b) Directors’ emoluments

       Year Period from
    Performance   ended 27 October
  Basic Car -related  Benefits  31 December 2005 to
  salary allowance bonus in kind Fees 2007 31 December
  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 2006

Executive Directors       
I R Watson  205 20 205 14 – 444 453
M L Jones  205 20 205 9 – 439 450
       
Non-Executive Directors       
J D Hambro  – – – – 50 50 54
S T Gee  – – – – 25 25 27
R S Mully  – – – – 25 25 17

Total  410 40 410 23 100 983 1,001

Benefits in kind represent the deemed monetary value of the use of company cars, health care and life insurance provided by 
the Group. 

The fees of Mr S T Gee were paid to Wallace Clifton Limited.
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Audited information continued
c) Long-Term Incentive Plan
The committee reviewed the potential liability of the Group to payments which would fall due under the current four-year 
long-term incentive plan which is due to end on 31st December 2009. Projections for the Group were reviewed using the 
existing internal budgets and the proposed investment programme. Using assumptions of current interest rates, current 
exchange rates and current property yields liability under the scheme is estimated to be £615,000 (2006: £nil).

d) Directors’ pension entitlements
The Group made contributions of £32,800 (Period from 27 October 2005 to 31 December 2006: £34,667) to the self-
administered pension fund of Mr M L Jones and contributions of £32,800 (Period from 27 October 2005 to 31 December 
2006: £34,667) to the self-administered pension fund of Mr I R Watson.

This report was approved by the Board of Directors on 7 April 2008 and signed on its behalf by

J D HAMBRO
7 April 2008.
 

Report of the Remuneration Committee continued
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Financial calendar

Preliminary announcement 8 April 2008
 
Ex dividend date 16 April 2008
 
Record date 18 April 2008
 
Posting dividend 15 May 2008
 
Dividend payable 16 May 2008
 
Annual General Meeting 9 June 2008
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Notes



During 2007 the Group moved a long way towards 
achieving its objectives. Hansteen achieved substantial 
profits and NAV growth and has declared a prudent 
dividend increase. 
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